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PIC Fyfield Limited
Strategic report

Business review and principal activities

PIC Fyfield Limited (the Company) acts as an investment holding company and provides management services to
fellow group undertakings.

Results and future prospects

The results for the period are set out on page 6.

The directors consider the profit achieved on ordinary activities before taxation of £44.0m (2021: £32.3m) and the
state of affairs of the Company to be satisfactory, given the economic climate. The directors remain confident
about the Company’s future performances, which are further encouraged by the post year end performance of the

group.

Activities
The principal activity of the Company is to continue as a holding company providing management services to
fellow group undertakings.

s Profit beforc tax increased by £11.7m to £44.0m for the year ended 30 June 2022 (2021: £32.3m) and

+ Net assets including pension assets decreased from £171.1m in 2021 to £164.7m in 2022,

Key performance indicators, risks and uncertainties

The directors consider the key performance indicator to be the carrying value of the investments. The investments
have performed in [ine with expectation during the year. An assessment of impairment is undertaken where there
are possible indicators of impairment, and on an annual basis.

The wider group is affected by the following risks to which all group entities including P1C Fyfield Limited bear
an indirect risk. The Group and Company are subject to foreign exchange risk, interest risk and the risk of the
underlying trading performance of its subsidiary undertakings.

These risk arc managed by the Group’s Corporate Treasury function which provides services to the Company,
co-ordinates our access to domestic and international financial markets, and monitors and manages the financial
risks relating to the Company’s operations, through internal risk reports that analyse exposures by degree and
magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk {(including currency risk, fair valuc interest rate risk and price
risk}, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

We seek to minimise the effects of these risks by hedging them using derivative financial instruments. Our use
of financial derivatives is governed by policies approved by the Board of directors, which provide written
principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, the usc of financial derivatives and non-
derivative financial instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity. The Board of directors regularly reviews
our compliance with policies and exposure limits. The Company docs not enter into or trade financial instruments,
including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

The Company’s risk management process has identified certain key risks faced by the Company. The risks
identified below do not necessarily comprise all those affecting the Company and the risks listed are not set out
in any particular order of priority. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Company or the
directors or that the Company or the directors currently deem immaterial may also adversely affect the Company’s
business or operations.

Product development and competitive edge

The key risk is the development programme fails to produce best genetics for customers and increased competition
in the market reduces market share of and margins in the Company’s subsidiarics.

We have dedicated teams within the Genus Group who align our product development to customer requirements,
while our technical services help customers to make best use of our products. We frequently measure our performance
against competitors in customers’ systems to ensure the value added by our genetics remains competitive.



PIC Fyfield Limited

Strategic report (Continued)

Biosecurity and continuity of supply

The key risks are loss of key livestock, owing to disease outbreak; the loss of ability to move animals or semen freely
(including across borders) due to disease outbreak, environmental incident or intemational trade sanctions; and the
lower demand for our products due to industry wide disease outbreaks.

We have stringent biosecurity standards, with independent reviews throughout the year to ensure compliance. Within
the Genus Group we continue to extend the geographical diversity of our production facilities, to avoid over-reliance
on single sites,

Human Resouarces

The key risk is a failure to attract or retain skills and experience within our exccutive, management and employee
cohorts.

We manage our talent risk through comprehensive people plans, covering recruitment, performance management,
reward, succession planning, communication and engagement.

Going concern

The company's business activity is detailed above. Liquidity is managed by the Genus ple {(‘The Group’) using
long-term group bank facilities. Having considered the current economic environment, the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concem basis in preparing the financial
statements

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

O O
D Noonan

Director

14 December 2022



PIC Fyfield Limited

Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report and the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Business review and principal activities
The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides management services to fcllow group
undertakings.

Financial risk management and R&D activitics have been discussed within the Strategic Report.

Results and dividends

The results for the period are set out on page 6.

The directors paid a final dividend of £50,000,000 (2021: £40,000,000). The directors did not recommend the
payment of a dividend after year end 30 June 2022 (2021:£nil).

The directors who served on the board during the year and to the date of this report, are stated on page 1.

Financial risk management

Refer to the Strategic Report on Pages 2-3.

Future developments

The dircctors expect the general level of activity to remain consistent with 2022 in the forthcoming year.
Directors’ Indemnities

The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which were made
during the year and remain in force at the date of this report.

Approval of reduced disclosures

The Company, as a qualifying entity, has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions in FRS 102 paragraph 1.12.
The Company’s shareholders have been notified in writing about the intention to take advantage of the disclosure
exemptions and no objections have been received.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small compantes within
part 15 of the Companies Act 2006.

oved by the Board of Directers and signed on behalf of the Board.

Noonan
Director
14 December 2022



PIC Fyfield Limited

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicabie law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law} including FRS 102 “The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”. Under company law the directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the directors are required to:

- seleet suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenial departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose with rcasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.



PIC Fyfield Limited

Income Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Turnover

Staff costs

GMP equalisation cost

Other operating expenses

Income from fixed asset investments
Operating profit

Net finance income

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Tax charge on profit on ordinary activities

Profit for the financial year

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Profit for the financial year

Irems that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Actuarial gains relating to retirement benefits (gross)

Actuarial gains relating to other retirement benefits

Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the financial year

All amounts derive from continuing operations.

14
12

2022 2021
£000 £000
473 460
(358} (327)
- (920)
(362) (359)
40,110 28,508
39,863 27,362
4,108 4,960
43,971 32,322
(443) (369)
43,528 31,953
43,528 31,953
- 920
102 49
(23) (90)
43,607 32,832




PIC Fyfield Limited

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2022

At 30 June 2020
Actuarial gain on retirement benefit (net of tax)

Other comprehensive profit for the year
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income for the financial year
Dividends

At 30 June 2021
Actuarial gain on retirement benefit (net of tax)

Other comprehensive profit for the year
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income for the financial year
Dividends

At 30 June 2022

Called up Capital Profit and

share redemption loss Total
capital reserve account equity
£°000 £°000 £'0800 £000
150,000 7,277 21,019 178.296
- - 879 879

- - 879 879

- - 31,953 31,953

- - 32,832 32,832

- - (40,000} {40,000}
150,000 7,277 13,851 171,128
- - 79 79

- - 79 79

- - 43,528 43,528

- - 43,607 43.607

- - (50,000) {50,000)
150,000 7,277 7.458 164,735




PIC Fyfield Limited

Balance Sheet

As at 30 June 2022
2022 2021
£:000 £°000
Notes
Non-current assets
Intangible Assets 7 1,339 1,623
Investment in group undertakings g 61,707 210,939
Deferred tax Y] 366 409
63,412 212,971
Current assets
Debtors 9 151,484 1,096
Cash at bank and in hand - 25
151,484 1,121
Creditors: amounts falling due
within one year 11 (35,290) (41,454)
Net current assets / (liabilities) ' 116,194 {40,333)
Total assets fess current labilities being net assets 179,606 172,638
Creditors: amounts falling due after one year
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings (13,531) -
Provisions for liabilities and charges 12 (1,340) (1,510
Net assets excluding pension liabilities 164,735 171,128
Pension liabilities 14 - -
Net assets including pension liabilities 164,735 171,128
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 13 150,000 150,000
Capital redemption reserve 1,277 7,277
Retained earnings 7,458 13,851
Total shareholder’s funds 164,735 171,128

For the year ending 30 June 2022 the Company was entitled to exemption from audit under section 479A of the
Companies Act 2006 relating to subsidiary companies.

Directors’ responsibilities:
¢ the members have not required the Company to obtain an audit of its accounts for the year in question in
accordance with section 476;
*  the directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the ACT with respect
to accounting records and the preparation of accounts.
These financial statements for PIC Fyfield Limited {(company registration number 00019739) were approved by the
Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 14 December 2022.

Bwed on behalf of the Board of Directors
SH e

Noonan
Director



PIC Fytield Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

1. Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies are summarised below. They have all been applied consistently throughout
the year and to the preceding year.

General information and basis of accounting

PIC Fyficld Limited is a private company limited by shares incorporated in the United Kingdom under the
Companies Act and registered in England and Wales. The address of the registered office is given on page 1.
The nature of the Company’s operations and its principal activitics are set out in the strategic repott on pages 2
to 3.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to include certain
items at fair value, and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102) ‘The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ircland’ issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

We have used the equity method to account for the Group’s interest in joint ventures and associates.

The functional and presentational currency of PIC Fyfield Limited is considered to be pounds sterling because
that is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

PIC Fyfield Limited meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 102 and has therefore taken advantage
of the disclosure exemptions available to it in relation to financial instruments, presentation of a cash flow
statement, intra-group transactions and remuneration of key management personnel, exposure to financial risks
and financial assets and liabilities defined as financial instruments. The Company is consolidated in the financial
statements of its ultimate parent, Genus ple, as disclosed in Note 16.

Going concern

The Company's business activities are detailed in the Strategic Report and Directors' Report. Having considered
the current economic environment the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Consolidation

The Income Statement and Balance Sheet are those of the Company. Consolidated financial statements have not
been prepared as the Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Genus plc, a company incorporated in the United
Kingdom (see note 16) whosc consolidated financial statements can be obtained from www.genusplc.com. The
Company has taken advantage of the exemption from the requirement to produce consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Section 400 of the Companies Act 2006.

Joint venture

Joint Ventures are stated at cost less any provision for impairment.

Turnover

Turnover comprises of management expenses charged to group undertakings, excluding VAT.
Fixed asset investments

Fixed asset investments are stated at cost less provision for impairment in valuc.

Taxation

Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or
recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date.



PIC Fyfield Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

1. Accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance
sheet date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay
less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date. Timing differences are differences between the
Company's taxable profits and its results as stated in the financial statements that arise from the inclusion of
gains and losses in tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial
statements,

Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that, on the basis of all
available evidence, it can be rcgarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from
which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

When the amount that can be deducted for tax for an asset (other than goodwill) that is recognised in a business
combination is less (more) than the value at which it is recognised, a deferred tax liability (asset) is recognised
for the additional tax that will be paid (avoided) in respect of that difference. Similarly, a deferred tax asset
(liability) is recognised for the additional tax that will be avoided (paid) because of a difference between the
value at which a liability is recognised and the amount that will be assessed for tax. The amount attributed to
goodwill is adjusted by the amount of deferred tax recognised.

Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance shect date that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference.

Where items recognised in other comprehensive income or equity are chargeable to or deductible for tax
purposes, the resulting current or deferred tax expense or income is presented in the same component of
comprehensive income or equity as the transaction or other event that resulted in the tax expense or income.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts
and the Company intends either to scttle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if: a) the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and b) the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitics relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and asscts on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are reported at the rates of
exchange prevailing at that date.

Pensions

The Company is the principal employer of the Dalgety Pension Fund (DPF), which is a funded defined benefit
scheme providing benefits based on final pensionable salary. The amounts charged to operating profit are the
current service costs and gains and losses on settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff
costs. Past service costs are recognised immediately in the Income Statement if the benefits have vested. If the
benefits have not vested immediately, the costs are recognised over the period until vesting occurs. The interest
cost and the expected return on assets are shown as a net amount of other finance costs or credits adjacent to
interest. Remeasurement comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on scheme assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are recognised immediately in Other
Comprehensive Income.

10



PIC Fyfield Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the vear ended 30 June 2022

1. Accounting policies (continued)
Pensions continued

Defined benefit schemes are funded, with the assets of the scheme held separately from those of the Company,
in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current
rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and term to the scheme liabilitics,

The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The resulting
defined benefit asset or liability, net of the related deferred tax, is presented separately after other net assets on
the face of the Balance Shect. Pension assets are recognised to the extent to which a surplus is regarded as
recoverable.

For defined contribution schemes the amount charged to the profit and loss account in respect of pension costs
and other retirement benefits is the contributions payable in the year. Differences between contributions payable
in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet.

Leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term, even if the payments are
not made on such a basis. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to sign an operating lease are
similarly spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial habilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at transaction price (including transaction costs), except
for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair
value (which is normally the transaction price excluding transaction costs), unless the arrangement constitutes a
financing transaction. [f an arrangement constitutes a finance transaction, the financial asset or financial liability
is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt
instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are only offset in the statement of financial position when, and only when there
exists a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the Company intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Debt instruments which meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method:

(a) Returns to the holder are (i) a fixed amount; or (ii) a fixed rate of return over the life of the instrument;
or (iii) a variable return that, throughout the life of the instrument, is equal to a single referenced quoted or
observable interest rate; or (iv) some combination of such fixed rate and vaniable rates, providing that both rates
are positive.

() There is no contractual provision that could, by its terms, result in the holder losing the principal amount
or any interest attributable to the current period or prior periods.

(¢)  Contractual provisions that permit the issuer to prepay a debt instrument or permit the holder to put it
back to the issuer before maturity are not contingent on future events, other than to protect the holder against the
credit deterioration of the issuer or a change in control of the issuer, or to protect the holder or issuer against
changes in relevant taxation or law.



PIC Fyfield Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

1. Accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities continued

(d}  Therc are no conditional returns or repayment provisions except for the variable rate return described in
{a) and prepayment provisions described in (c).

Debt instruments that are classified as payable or receivable within one year and which meet the above conditions
arc measured at the undiscounted amount of the cash or other consideration expected to be paid or received, net
of impairment.

Other debt instruments not meeting these conditions are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Commitments to make and receive loans which meet the conditions mentioned above are measured at cost
{which may be nil) less impairment.

Financial assets are derecognised when and only when a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or are settled, b) the Company transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or ¢) the Company, despite having retained some significant risks
and rewards of ownership, has transferred control of the assct to another party and the other party has the
practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability
unilaterally and without needing to impose additional restrictions on the transfer.

Financial liabilities are derecognised only when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to scttle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 1f the effect is material, provisions are discounted to
present value.

Employee Benefits

The Company recognises a provision for annual leave accrued by employees as a result of services rendered in
the current period, and which employees are entitled to carry forward and use within the next 6 months. The
provision is measured at the salary cost payable for the period of absence.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of PIC Fyfield Limited accounting policies, which are described in this note, the directors are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of asscts and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of
the revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years,

Critical judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies

Defined benefit pension schemes

Amounts recorded in the Financial Statements in respect of defined benefit pension schemes are also based on
significant estimates, Judgements required included the extent to which we should provide for any amounts that
might become payable under our joint and several liability in respect of the Dalgety Pension Fund, and the extent
of additional liability required under FRED 55.

12



PIC Fyfield Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

1. Accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition
Management services were carried out during the year to other group companies. These services were carried

out throughout the whole ycar and were recognised in line with the Company’s general policy of recognising
revenue when goods are delivered/services provided.

In making its judgement, management considered the detailed criteria for the recognition of revenue from the
sale of goods/provision of services set out in FRS 102 Section 23 Revenue and, in particular, whether the Group
had transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods. The directors are
satisfied that the significant risks and rewards have been transferred and that recognition of the revenue in the
current year is appropriate.

Net finance costs

[nterest income and interest payable in the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings are recognised as they
accrue.

Intangible Assets

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable that future
economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost can be reliably measured.

After initial recognition, the Company will report these intangible assets at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment [osses.

The estimated useful lives for the intangible’s assets are as follows:

- Genetic Rights: 7 to 8 years.

Key source of estimation uncertainty - impairment of Investments
Determining whether Investments are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating

units. The value in use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.

13



PIC Fyfield Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

2. Turnever

All turnover originates in the United Kingdom and relates to charges for management scrvices provided to fellow
group undertakings. The split of turnover by geographic dcstination is as follows:

2022 2021
£°000 £°000
United Kingdom 473 460
3 Profit an ordinary activities before taxation
Profit on ordinary activitics before taxation is calculated after charging:
2022 2021
£°000 £°000
Foreign cxchange loss/(gain) 377 (393)
Operating lease rentals - 6

4. Directors and employees

The average number of persons employed by the Company during the year was two (2021: two).

The costs incurred in respect of these employees were:

2022 2021
£000 £000
Wages and salaries 295 280
Social security costs 38 30
Other pension cost 25 17
358 327

The emotaments of the directors were as follows:
2022 2021
£000 £000
Wages and salaries 209 180
Pension costs 17 16
226 196

The emoluments of the highest paid director were £226,000 (2021: £196,000) including pension costs of
£17,000 (2021: £16,000).

14



PIC Fytfield Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

4. Directors and employees (continued)

The remuneration of the other two directors (2021: two) has been bome by the ultimate parent company, Genus
ple, in both the current and preceding period. The directors’ emoluments for their services to the group are shown
in the financial statements of Genus ple. The allocation for their qualifying services to the Company is £nil
(2021: £mil).

The Company has certain obligations in relation te unfunded pension obligations of former directors of the
Company. Details regarding the provision made are disclosed in Note 12. A total of £50,000 (2021: £52,000)

was paid to former directors under this scheme during the period.

There are no dircctors for whom retirement benefits are accruing under the Dalgety Pension Fund (2021: £nil}.

5. Net finance income
2022 2021
£000 £°000
Interest payable and similar charges:
Interest payable to group undertakings (100) (342)
Foreign exchange losses on third party and intra group balances 377 -
Interest receivable and similar income:
Interest receivable by group undertakings 4,622 4,936
Foreign exchange gains on third party and intra group balances - 393
Other finance charges:
Unwind discount on provisions (see note 12) 37 (27
Net finance income 4,108 4,960

During the year the Company received interest of £4,549k (202 1: £4,936k) from Genus plc.

15



PIC Fyfield Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

6. Tax charge on profit on ordinary activities
2022 2021
£2000 £°000
UK corporation tax (429) (533)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 6 (10)
Current tax charge on profit for the year (423} (543)
Deferred taxation:
Origination and reversal of timing differences in the year (20 164
Prior year adjustment - 10
Total deferred tax (20} 174
Total tax charge on ordinary activities for the year (443) (369)
Total current and deferred tax relating to items of other
comprehensive income (23) (90)
(466) (459)

Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The differences between the total tax charge shown above and the amount calculated by applying the standard
rate of UK corporation tax to the profit before tax is as follows:

2022 2021
£'000 £000
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 43,971 32,322
Tax on profit on ordinary activities at standard UK corporation tax
rate at 19% (2021: 19%) on profit on ordinary activities 8,355 6,141
Effects of:
- Decrease in tax provision (289) (353)
- Foreign Income - 5
- Non-taxable income received (7,621) (5,416)
- Adjustment in respect of prior year (6) -
- Change in rate of tax 6 (8)
Total tax charge on ordinary activities for the year 443 369

The UK headline rate of tax remained at 19% in the current period (2021; 19%). The Finance Bill 2021, which
was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021, intreduced a new rate of corporation tax of 25% for large companies
with effect from 1 April 2023. UK deferred tax assets expected to unwind in the period to 31 March 2023 have
continued to be recognised at 19%, and the remaining UK deferred tax assets that will likely unwind post 31
March 2023 have been recognised at the new forward tax rate of 25%.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

7.

Intangible Assets

Cost
At I July and at 30 June 2022

Amortisation & impairments
At 1 July 2021
Amortisation for the ycar

At 30 June 2022

Net hook value
At 30 June 2022

At 30 June 2021

Fixed asset investments

Cost

At 1 July 2021

Additions

Loan Repayment

Effect of Movement in Exchange Rates

At 30 June 2022
Impairments

At 1 July 2021

Write down of investment

At 30 June 2022

Net book value
At 30 June 2022

At 30 June 2021

Equity
£°000

230,502

Genetic
Technology
£°000

2,050
427
284

711

1,339

1,623

—_———

Loans Total
£°000 £000

169,844 400,346
9,026 9,026
(158,208)  (158,208)
(50) (50)

230,502

20,612 251,114

189,407

- 189,407

189,407

- 189,407

41,095

20,612 61,707

41,095

169,844 210,939

In October 2021, HY-CO Hybridschweine-Cooperations GmbH was dissolved in which the company held a
50% investment. The net book value at 30 June 2022 for this fixed asset investment was nil.
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PIC Fyfield Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

8. Fixed asset investments (continued)

The Company’s investments in subsidiaries and associates at 30 June 2022 were as follows:

Name of undertaking

Registered Address

Cuoundey of
incorporation

Direct/indirect
Group interest

% of share

capital/voting
rights held by
the Company

PIC Genetics Designated
Activity Company

Riverside One, Sir John
Rogerson's Quay, Dublin
2, Ireland

Ireland

Indirect

100%

Avlscenter Mollevang A/S

Mollevej 3, 6670 Holsted,
Denmark

Denmark

Indirect

49%*

PIC {Shanghai} Agriculture
Science and Technology
Company Limited

Room 702-5,

No. 719 Shen Gui Road,
Min Hang District,
Shanghai, China

China

Direct

100%

PIC Andina S.A.

Avenida del Parque
#4161 office #601,
Huechuraba, Santiago,
Chile

Chile

Indirect

100%

PIC France SA

69 Chemin des Molicres,
69210, Lentilly, France

France

Indirect

100%

PIC Genetics LLC

79 Narodnyy Boulevard,
308000, Belgorod,
Russian Federation

Russia

Indirect

100%

PIC Italia S.r.l.

Strada dei Loggi 22,
06135, Ponte San
Giovanni, Perugia, Italy

Italy

Indirect

85%

PIC Philippines, Inc.

Unit 2101/2102, 21st
Floor Jollibee Plaza, F.
Ortigas, Jr. Rd., Ortigas
Center, Pasig City, 1605,
Philippines

Philippines

Indirect

9G.9%*

ARBS Polska Sp. z 0.0.

Szafirowa 22A, 82-300
Gronowo Gomne,
Poland

Poland

Indirect

100%

PIC (Zhangjiagang) Pig
Improvement Co., Ltd.

Office 1210, International
Finance Tower, 20
Jingang Road,
Zhangjiagang Bonded
Zone, Zhangjiagang City,
Jiangsu Province, China

China

Indirect

100%

PIG Improvement Company
Deutschland GmbH

JathostraBe 11a, D-30163
Hannover, Germany

Germany

Indirect

100%

Pig Improvement Company
Esparfia, S.A.

C/Pau Vila, 22 2 puerta
6, 08174 Sant Cugat del
Valles, Barcelona, Spain

Spain

Direct

100%
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

8. Fixed asset investments (continued)
% of share
. . Country of Direct/indirect  capital/voting
N f undert . . . :
ame of undertaking Registered Address incorporation Group interest  rights held by
the Company
Matrix House, Basing

Pig Improvement Colpaty View, Basingstoke, United . o

UK Limited Hampshire, RG21 4DZ,  Kingdom Direct 100%

United Kingdom

Matrix House, Basing

View, Basingstoke, United
Hampshire, RG21 4DZ, Kingdom
United Kingdom

Pigtales Limited Direct 100%

Av. Eng. Duartc Pachco,
Amoreiras, Torre 2 -
14°A, 1070-102 Lisboa,
Portugal

Reprodutores PIC, Lda Portugal Indirect 100%

12105, 21st floor, Yun
tian Building, 12 Feng
: : Cheng Second Street ,
Shaanxi PIC Pig Xian Economic China Indirect 100%
Development District,
Xian City, Shaanxi
Province, China

Improvement Co., Lid.

Gunzigou Village, Gao

Guan Town, Benxi . . o
County, Benxi City, China Indirect 100%

Liaoning Province, China

Liao Ning PIC Agriculture
Science and Technology Co.,
Ltd

Qiaojiaguan Village,
Jianjun Town
Yongshou County,
Xianyang

Shaanxi Province,
China

Xianyang Yongxiang
Agriculture Technology Co.,
Ltd.

China Indirect 49%,*

Jintang Village, Jinding

Town, Zhidan County,

Yan An Municipality, China Indirect 499%*
Shaanxi Province,

China

Inner Mongolia Haoxiang Pig
Breeding Co. Ltd

Place Saint-Lambert
Agence Spillers NV, 14, 1200 Woluwe- Belgium Indirect 100%
Saint-Lambert '

Matrix House, Basing

View, Basingstoke, United
Hampshire, RG21 Kingdom
4DZ, United Kingdom

Brazilian Holdings Limited Direct 100%

Rua Branco de Moralis,
No. 84, ¢j.06, Chacara
Dalco Exportadora Ltda. Santo Antenio, Sao Brazil Indirect 100%
Paulo-SP, 04718-010,
Brazil

Matrix House, Basing
Dalgety Pension Trust View, Basingstoke, United . o
Limited Hampshire, RG21 Kingdom Direct 100%
4DZ, United Kingdom




PIC Fyfield Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

8. Fixed asset investments (continued)

Name of undertaking

Registered Address

Country of
incorporation

Direct/indirect
Group interest

% of share
capital/voting
rights held by
the Company

Fyfield (SM) Limited

Matrix House, Basing
View, Basingstoke,
Hampshire, RG21
4DZ, United Kingdom

United
Kingdom

Indirect

100%

Fyfield Dormant

Matrix House, Basing
View, Basingstoke,
Hampshire, RG21
4DZ, United Kingdom

United
Kingdom

Indirect

100%

Fyfield Holland B.V.

Matrix House, Basing
View, Basingstoke,
Hampshire, RG21
4D7Z, United Kingdom

Netherlands

Direct

100%

Fyfield Ireland Limited

One Spencer Dock,
North Wall Quay,
Dublin 1, Ireland

Ireland

Indirect

100%

GENEETIC Service S.R.L.

Viale Europa 7!, 3210
0, Belluno, Italy

Ttaly

Indirect

33.3%

Societa Agricola GENEETIC
S.RL.

Via Marche n. 2, 42122
, Reggio Emilia, [taly

[taly

Indirect

33.3%

Pig Improvement Company
Overseas Limited

Matrix House, Basing
View, Basingstoke,
Hampshire, RG21
4DZ, United Kingdom

United
Kingdom

Direct

100%

Spillers Limited

Matrix House, Basing
View, Basingstoke,
Hampshire, RG21
4DZ, United Kingdom

UK

Direct

100%

Spitlers Overseas Limited

Matrix House, Basing
View, Basingstoke,
Hampshire, RG21
4DZ, United Kingdom

UK

Indirect

100%

Sygen Investimentos Ltda.

Rua Branco de Morais,
No. 84, ¢j.06, Chacara
Santo Antonio, Sao
Paulo-SP, 04718-(10,
Brazil

Brazil

Direct

100%

Usicafé SA

¢/o Cabinet Mayor,
avocats, Rue Jean-Gabriel
Eynard 6, 1205 Genéve

Switzerland

indirect

100%

In the opinion of the directors the aggregate value of the investments in the Company’s subsidiaries is not less
than the aggregate amount at which those assets are stated in the Balance Sheet. All are wholly owned and
incorporated and operate in the UK, unless otherwise indicated.

*All types of shares held in investments are ordinary share capital.
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PIC Fyfield Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

9. Debtors
Amounts falling due within onc year:

2022 2021

£°600 £°000

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 151,444 1,030
Other debtors 40 66
151,484 1,096

Amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured and repayable on demand.

10. Deferred tax

The Company’s deferred tax position may be analysed as follows:
Deferred tax asset
recognised in accounts

2022 2021

£000 £°000

Deferred tax 366 409

Movement on deferred tax

Total

£°000

Opening deferred tax asset 409
Current year credit to the Income Statement (20}
Movement in statement of recognised gains and losses (23)
Closing deferred tax assct 366
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Notes to the financial statements
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10,  Deferred tax (continued)

Provided
2022 2021
£°000 £°060
Difference between capital allowances and depreciation 13 13
Other timing differences 353 396
366 409

UK deferred tax assets expected to unwind in the period to 31 March 2023 have continued to be recognised at
19%, and the remaining UK deferred tax assets that will likely unwind post 31 March 2023 have been recognised
at the new forward tax rate of 25%,

11.  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2022 2021

£000 £7000

Trade creditors - 4
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 33,974 39,623
Other creditors 10 4
Corporation tax 996 1,477
Accruals and deferred income 310 346
35,290 41,454

During the year PIC Fyfield Limited was charged loan interest of £16k (2021: £11k) by Pig Improvement
Company Deutschland GmbH, £14k (2021: £119k) by Pig Improvement Company Esparia, S.A., £28k (2021:
£22k) by Genus Australia Pty Ltd, £35k (2021: £187k) by Pig Improvement Company de México, S. de R.L. de
C.V. and £8k {202 1:£nil) by PIC France SA. The amounts owed to group undertakings have no fixed repayment
date, and charge interest rates varying between 0% and 5%.
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12.

13.

14,

Pravisions for liabilities and charges

Other

Other  restructuring
pensions provisions Total
£°000 £°000 £000
At ] July 2021 920 590 1,510
Utilised 11 the year (50) (55) (105)

Actuarial loss:

In other comprehensive income statement (80) (22) (102)
Unwinding of discount on provisions 20 17 37
At 30 June 2022 810 530 1,340

Other pensions comprise unfunded pension obligations to current and former executives of the Company
calculated on the transfer value method. Payments will be made upon retirement of the relevant executives.

Other restructuring provisions relate to post retirement health benefit obligations to former Dalgety ple head
office staff.

Called up share capital

2022 2021
£7000 £2000
Allotted and fully paid
150,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 cach as at 30 June 150,000 150,000

The Company’s other reserves are as follows:

The profit and loss reserve represents cumulative profits or losses, including actuarial gains/losses on retirement
benefits, net of dividends paid and other adjustments.

During the current year, the directors recommended and paid a dividend of £0.33 (2021: £0.27) per ordinary
share £50,000,000 (2021: £40,000,000).

Employee Benefits

The Company operates defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for all qualifying employees. The total
expense charged to profit or loss in the period ended 30 June 2022 was £25k (2021: £17k).

Defined Benefit scheme
The most recent actuarial valuation of the Dalgety Pension Fund was at 31 March 2021 and carried out by

qualified actuaries.
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14.

Employee Benefits (continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions adopted in the 2021 valuation were that:
+ Investment returns on existing assets is gilt yields less 0.35% per annum;

e  CPI price inflation is expected to be 0.7% per annum lower than RPI inflation until 2030, then RPI
curve from 2030 onwards; and

e  Pension in payment and pension in deferment would increase in future in line with CPI price inflation,
subject to various minimum and maximum increases.

The market value of the available assets at 31 March 2021 was £938m, The value of those assets represents
approximately 100% of the value of the uninsured liabilities, which were £337m at 31 March 2021. Under the
funding agreement, the Company will not have to make deficit repair contributions.

The disclosures required under FRS 102 have been calculated by an independent actuary based on accurate
calculations carried cut as at 31 March 2021 and updated for changes in financial assumptions to 30 June 2022.

As at 30 June 2022, the DPF, which includes a £20.5m separate reserve held against future unknown liabilities
materialising, was in an overall net pension asset position of £6.6m. However the Company does not have the
unilateral right to this surplus and furthermore cannot reduce contributions or organisc a refund and therefore in
line with FRED 55, the recognition of this asset is restricted.

In August 2019, the Trustees purchased an additional bulk buy-in annuity policy with Legal and General in
respect of the remaining deferred and pensioner members, at a cost of £38m. This reflected a £15m premium
over the estimated FRS 102 liability of £23m, reducing the restriction on the recognition of assets.

In addition to the aggregate assets and liabilities disclosed, a bulk annuity policy was secured with an insurance
company in July 1999, which matched the benefit entitlement of the almost all the fund’s current and deferred
pension liabilities at that time. The value of these policies and related liabilities at 30 June 2022 was £654m
{2021: £691m).

The financial assumptions used to calculate the scheme liabilities are:

2022 2021 2020
Liability discount rate 3.90% 1.90% 1.65%
Inflation assumption 2.40% 2.10% 2.10%

The morality assumptions used are consistent with those recommended by the scheme’s actuaries and reflect
the latest available tables, adjusted for the experience of the scheme where appropriate. For 2022, the mortality
tables used are 100% of the S3PMA (males)/S3PFA_M (females) all lives tables, with birth year and 2021 CMI
projections with a smoothing parameter of Sk = 7.0 and A = 0.5%, subject to a long-tcrm rate of improvement
of 1.5% for males and females and 2021: 97% of the SN2A tables, with birth year and 2019 CMI projections
with a smoothing parameter pf Sk = 7.0, subject to a long-term rate of improvement of 1.25% for males and
females.
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14,

Employee Benefits (continued)

The following table shows the assumptions used for all schemes and illustrates the expectation of life of an
average member retiring at age 65 at the balance sheet date and a member reaching age 65 in 20 years’ time.

2022 2021
(years) (years)
Retiring at balance sheet date at age 65: Male 22.6 22.0
Female 24.4 24.4
Retiring at age 65 in 20 years’ time: Male 24.2 233
Female 26.2 25.9
The assets in the scheme and the expected rate of return were:
Value at Value at
30 June 30 June
Levell Level2 Level3 2022 Levell Level2 Level3 2021
£2000 £000 £2000 £°000 £7000 £7000 £7000 £°000
Bonds - 7.940 - 7,940 - 11,600 - 11,600
Diversified growth funds - 8,480 - 8,480 - 8,900 - 8,900
Bulk annuity policies - - 543910 543,910 - - 677,500 677,500
Total assets - 16420 543910 560,330 - 20,500 677,500 698,000
2022 2021 2019 2018 2017
£°000 £000 £°060 £000 £°000
Balance sheet reconciliation
Total market value of assets 560,330 698,000 734,730 780,370 728,650
Present value of scheme liabilities (553,690) (689,170) (726,050) {761,290) (719,620}
Irrecoverable surplus not recognised (6,640) (8,830) (8,680) {19,080) (9,030}
Deficit in the scheme - - - - -
Related deferred tax asset - - - - -
Net pension liability - - - - -
An analysis of the amount that has been charged to operating profit is as follows:
2022 2021
£7000 £7000
Current service cost - -
Past service cost - {(920)
- (920)
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14.

Employee Benefits (continued)

An analysis of the amount that has been credited to net finance income is as follows:

Expected return on pension scheme assets
Interest on pension scheme liabilitics

Net return

Amounts recognised in the statement of Comprehensive
Income:

Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets
Experience gains and losses arising on the scheme liabilities

Actuarial gain recognised in the Statement Comprehensive
Income

Movements in scheme during the year:

Deficit in scheme at start of year
Movement in year:
Actuarial gain

Movement in restriction of irrecoverable surplus

Deficit in scheme at end of year

2022 2021
£000 £2000
12,900 11,660
(12,900)  (11,660)
2022 2021
£2000 £000
(112,710} (9.980)
112,710 10,900
- 920
2022 2021
£000 £2000
. 150
" (150)
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14. Employee Benefits (continued)

History of experience gains and losses: 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018+
£000 £000 £°000 £000 £°000
Difference between the expected and actual
return on scheme assets £°000s: 112,710 9,980 11,530 (55,690) 1,240
Percentage of the scheme assets 20.1% 1.4% 1.6% 7.1% 4.0%

Experience gains and losses arising on the
scheme liabilities £'000s: (112,710 (10,900) (11,530) 55,690 (1,240)

Percentage of the present value of the scheme
liabilities 20.1% 1.6% 1.6% 7.3% 5.7%

Total actuarial amount recognised in the
statement of total recognised gains and losses

£7000s: - {920) - - -
Percentage of the present value of the scheme
liabilities 0.0% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 3.0%

+ excluding impact of bulk annuity policies
15.  Financial commitments

At 30 June 2022 the Company had the following total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leascs which expire:

2022 2021

£°000 £°000

Within one year - 4
- 4

16.  Ultimate parent undertaking

The Company’s parent undertaking and ultimate controlling party is Genus plc, a company which is incorporated
in the United Kingdom and registered in England and Wales. Genus plc is the largest and smallest group, of
which the Company is a member, for which financial statements are prepared. Copies of the financial statements
of Genus plc are available to the public from its registered office whose address is as follows:

Matrix House
Basing View
Basingstoke
Hampshire
RG21 4DZ

The Company is also exempt under the terms of FRS 102 from disclosing related party transactions with entities
that are wholly owned subsidiaries by the Genus Plc group of companies.
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17.  Contingent liabilities

The Company has entered into cross guarantees to the group’s bank in respect of the borrowings of its parent.
At 30 June 2022 the total contingent liability in respect of group borrowings was £183.9m (2021: £113.6m).
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18. EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES
We hoid interests in several joint ventures and associates where we have significant influence.

Accounting policies
Joint ventures are entities over whose activities we have jont control, under a contractual agreement. The Group Financial Statements
include the Group's share of profit or loss arising from joint ventures.

Associates are entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and operating policies. The Group
Financial Statements include the Group's share of the total recognised income and expense of associates on an equity accounted
basis, from the dote that significant influence commences until the date it ceases. When our share of losses exceeds our interestin an
associate. we reduce the carrying amount to nil and step recognising further losses, except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obhgations or made payments on an associate’s behalf.

Under the equity method, investments in joint ventures or associates are initially recognised in the Group Balance Sheet at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint ventures and
associates. Related-party transactions with the Group's joint ventures and associates primarily comprise the sale of products and
services. As each arrangement is a separate legal entity and control rights are substantially equal with the other parties, no significant
Judgements are required.

The Group's share of profit after tax in its equity accounted investees for the year was £5.2m (2021 £13.1m).

The carrying value of the investments is reconciled as follows:

2022 202

£m £

Balance at 1 July 34.1 227
Share of post-tox retained profts of joint ventures and associates 52 131
Additions 2.2 24
Dividends receved from Agroceres - PIC Genética de Suinos Ltda (Brazil) (3.1) (25}
Dvidends recelved from Societd Agricola GENEETIC St {italy) ©.1) -
Dividends received from inner Mongoha Hooxiung Pig Breeding Co. Ltd. {China) - (16}
Loan investmant - 04
Effect of other movements including exchange rates 29 {0.4)
Balance at 30 June 41.2 341

The additions in the year solely relate te cash injections made to Inner Mangolia Haoxiang Pig Breeding Co. Ltd. to fund their operation.
HY-CO Hybridschweine-Cooperations GmbH was struck off the register during the year.

During the prior year, we purchased a 39% shareholding for £2.4m in Xelect Limited, an aguaculture genetic services company, and
retain a call option to purchase the remaining shares in Xelect Limited in 2023. We also made an investment of £0.4m in Societd Agricola
GENEETIC S.rl,, primarily through a shareholder’s loan.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the ioint ventures and associates to transfer funds to the Parent, other than those
imposed by the Companies Act 2006 or eguivalent government rules within the joint venture’s jurisdiction.

Related-party transactions with joint ventures and associates

Transaction value Balance outstanding
2022 202t 2022 2021
Em £m £m [l
Sale of goods and services to jont ventures and associates - (18] 0.3 04
Purchase of goods and services from joint ventures and associates 6.5 S0 - 04)

All outstonding balances with joint ventures and associates are priced on an arm's length basis and are to be settled in cash within six
months of the reporting date. None of the balances are secured.

Summary financial information for equity accounted investees, adjusted for the Group's percentage ownership, 15 shown on the
fellowing page.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

18, EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES CONTINUED
Joint ventures and associates — year ended 30 June 2022

Cash and QOther
¢ash current  Non-current Biolegical Tetal Current Total Net
equivalent assets assats assets Qssets linbilities liabilities assets
Net assets Ownership £m £m £m £m Em £m £m £m

Agroceres - PIC Genatico

de Suinos Ltda (Brazil) 49% 0.2 17.6 23.6 6.9 48.3 (15.2) (15.2} 331
Inner Mongoha Haoxiang

Pig Breeding Co. Ltd

(Chinal 49% - 0.4 1.4 (1.2 0.6 {0.8) 0.8} 0.2)
Chitale Genus ABS (India)

Private Limited {India) 50% 0.3 0.3 11 - 17 {0.1) {0.4) 13

Avlscenter Mallevang A/ £49% - - - - - - - =

Yan'an Xrnyongxang
Technology Co, Ltd

{Chinal’ 49% 27 1.3 0.8 {0.5) 4.3 {0.3) 0.3) 40
Xelect Lymited (Urized
Kingdom])' 9% 0.1 0.2 2.2 - 25 (0.1) {0.1) 2.4
Societd Agricola GENEETIC
Sl {iatyl! 33% - 0.6 0.4 - 1.0 {0.4} (0.4} 0.6
Sacietd Agricola GENEETIC
Service Sl (Itaky)' 33% - - - - - - - -
33 20.4 295 5.2 58.4 (16.9) {17.2) 41.2
T e e a0 asseoete A pthe Smer voaeta e (s i s 0T venliss
NetlAS 41
valuation
movement on
biclogical Operating Prafit
Revenue assats Expenses profit Taxation after tax
income Statement Ownarship £m £m £m £m £m £m
Agroceres — PIC Genética de Suinos Ltda (Brazil) L0% 31.6 0.7) 21.7) 2.2 (2.6) 6.6
Inner Mongolia Hooxang Pig Breeaing Co. Lid.
(Cring)' L9% - (1.2) (1.00 (2.2} - (2.2)
Yan'an Xinyongxiang Technology Co  Ltd ICnina)’ 49% 5.5 0.5 {5.6) 0.4 - 0.4
Chitale Genus ABS (Inchic) Private uimited {Incha) 50% 0.3 - {0.2) 01 - Q.1
Avlscenter Mg levang A. S 49% - - - - - -
Xelect Limited {United Kirgdom)' 39% 0.6 - (0.5) 01 - 0.1
Soceta Agroolg GENEETIC Sl Lol 33% 19 - (1.7} 0.2 - 0.2
Societa Agricoa GENEETIC Service Sorl. {ltaly) 23% - - - - - -
399 {1.84) (30.7) 78 {2.4) 5.2
[ Zuasu izt ma 30 assocal= A 2fr o ooagbeants oo R Te et ety

Joint ventures and associates have a December year end, except Chitale Genus ABS (India) Private Limited, which has a March year
end, and Xelect Limited, which has a June year end. Where the year end differs from the year of the Group this is due to local
regulatory requirements
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18. EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES CONTINUED
Joint ventures and associates - year ended 30 June 2021

Casranad

s

IR R iy

MNel dssets D aurersh o £

Agroceres — PIC Genético

de Suinos Ltda (Braz) 49% 48 23 104 &9 ils 51 (5.1} 265
HY-CO Hybridschweline-

Cooperations GmbH

(Geinuny) 50% - Ul - - 01 - - Gl
Yan'an Xinyongxiang

Technology Co., Ltd

{China)’ 49% 30 09 08 {091 38 {04) (0.4} 34

Chitale Genus ABS {India)

Privarte Limitad (India) S0% - 03 L4 - 17 0.1} 05 12

Aviscenter Mallevang A-S' 49% - - - - - - - -

Xelect Limted (Urited

Kingdom)' 39% 01 0.1 24 - 24 (0.2) 0.2) 24

Societd Agricola GENEETIC

Srl {(taly) 33% - 02 04 - 06 o1 {oR ] 0%

Socletd Agricola GENEETIC

Service Sl (ltaly)' 33% - - - _ _ _ _ B
78 109 154 40 404 (59} »6.3) 341

T Tiss ned i A7 O8a00 Ara AL aThE: Su28TeeeTs arg S ass A s 0 o veniL ey

Opereting
PeverLe Frporses ot Traxot or

Incnme State ent Owrerse o £ £m o B £
Agroceres - PiC Genatica de Suinos Ltda (Brazil} 49% 315 39 (21.2) 142 (301 112
HY-CQO Hybridschweine -Cooperations GmiH
{Germany) 50% - - - - - -
Yan'an Xinysngxiang Technology Co., Ltd {Chingl’ 49% &0 (0.8) 133 19 - 19
Chitale Genus ABS (Indhia) Private Limited {ndia) 50% 0.4 - 03 01 - 01
Aviscenter Mallevang A /S 49% - - {02) 02 - 0.2
Xelect Limited (United Kingdom)' 9% 0.2 - 0.2 - - -
Societd Agrncola GENEETIC Srl {lkaly) 33% ca - 7 01 - 0.1
Societd Agrcela GENEETIC Service Srl. (Izaly)’ 33% - - - - - -

389 21 (259 161 {(3.0) 131
1 Classined as 2 ass0c Gre A of- e ryestrants ora close poo s o ot venfures

Joint ventures and associates have a December year end, except Chitale Genus ABS {India) Private Limited, which has a March
year end, and Xelect Limited, which has a June year end. Where the year end differs from the year of the Group this is due to local
regulatory requirements.

19. OTHER INVESTMENTS

We hold a number of unlisted and listed investrments, mainly comprising our strategic investment in Caribou Bicsciences, Inc. {'Caribou’)
and shares in listed entity National Milk Records plc 'NMR')L

Accounting policies

Finoncial assets ot fair value through other comprehensive income [FVYOCI) comprise equity securities which are not held for trading,
and which the Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recognise as FYOCI The Group considers this classification relevant
as these are strategic investments.

Financial assets ot FYOCI are adjusted to the fair value of the asset at the balance sheet date, with any gain or loss being recognised in
other comprehensive income ond held as part of other reserves. On disposal any gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and the cumulative gains or iosses are transferred from other reserves to retained earnings.

At initial recognition, the Group measures o financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of o financial asset not at fair value through
income statement, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through income statement are expensed in the Income Statement.
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Other investments may include equity investments (where the Group does not have control, joint cantrol or significant influence in the

investee), short-term deposits with banks and other investmeants with onginal maturities of rmore than three months. Any dividends
received are recognised in the Income Statement.

2022 2071

Investments carried at fair value Em Bl
Listed eqaity shares - Carnbou Bioscienceas, Inc. 4.4 104
Unisted equity shares — Dalry LLC (BoviSync') 2.2 12
Listed equity shares - NMR 21 20
Unlisted equity shares — Other 1.8 L1
10.2 14.7

We hold a strategic non-contralling interest in Caribou, which is measured at fair value using the valuation basis of a tevel 1
classification. Canbou shares are publicly traded on the NASDAQG.

We hold o strategic non-controfiing interest in BoviSync, a herd management software company. in January 2022, we increased our
shareholding by a further £1.0m. The investment is measured at fair value and the valuation basis of a Level 3 classification. The fair

value has been determined with reference to the equity purchase during the fiscal year.

NMR ordinary shares were acquired as part of the NMR pension agreement, and are measured at fair value, The vatuation basisis

Level 1 classification, where fair value techniques are quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Other unlisted equity investments primatily consist of strategic non-controlling interests in bovine technclogy companies, which are
measured at fair value and the valuation basis is Level 3 classification, where fair value technigues use inputs which have a significant
effect on the recorded fair value and are not based on cbsarvable market data.

20, INVENTORIES

Qur inventory primarily consists of bovine semen, raw materials and ancillary products.

Accounting policies

Inventory lexcluding biclogical assets' horvest)is stated ot the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the bosis
of weighted average costs and comprises direct materials and, where appropriate, direct labour costs and those overheods that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition,

For cur biclogical assets accounting policies, see note 16,

2022 FI

£m £

8 awogical assets’ narvest classed as inventories 209 178
Row materals and consumanies 3.6 29
Goods neld forresae 26.4 163
50.9 370

21, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Cur trade and other receivables mainly consist of amounts owed 1o us by customers and amounts we ody 1o our suppliers in advance.

Accounting policies

We state trade and other receivables at their amortised cost less any impairment Iosses.

2022
Em I

Tracte receivonles 105.3 872
_@53 exoacted credit loss allowance (4.3} (5.0)
Trade receivables ret of moarment 101.0 822
Other debtors 10.7 B4
Prepayrents 8.5 f=1o}
Ceortract assets Inote 241 77 77
COther taxes ond 3eCio seCarity 1.6 33
Current trade ond other rece vables 1295 106 2
Otmer gaotors 37 18
Coniroct assets ingre 24) 4.9 -
Non-current gthet receivaoles 8.6 18
138.1 1080
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES CONTINUED

Trade receivables
The average credit pericd our customers take on the sales of goods is 62 days {2021: 53 days). We do not charge interest on receivables
for the first 30 days from the date of the invoice.

The Group always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses {ECLs’).
The ECLs on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default experience of the debter and an
analysis of the debtor's current financial positicn, adjusted for factors that are spacific to the generc! econoemic conditions of the
industry and country in which the debtor operates and an assessment of koth the current and the forecast direction of conditions at
the reporting date. The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficuity and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, such as when the debtor has been placed under liguidation or has entered into
bonkruptcy proceedings.

The Group recognises ECLs with reference to the following matrix, in accordance with the simplified approach permitted in IFRS %,
There has been no change in the estimation techniques during the current reporting periad. A component of the calculation is the risk
premium of the countries in which our customers operate. The risk premiums are updated on each reporting date, to reflect changes in
the global ecenomy.

North Latin
America Ametica EMEA Asia
2022 Risk premium (%) 1.0% 5.1% 3.5% 3.7%
Trade receivables (Em) 311 223 39.3 12.6
202 Risk premium (%) 16% L% 3.1% 129%
Trade recevables (Em) 260 182 322 101

The following table shows the moverment in lifetime ECLs that has been recognised for trade recevables, in accordance with the
simplified gpproach set out in IFRS 9.

2022 2321

Em Zem

Balance at the start of the year 5.0 34
Change in loss allowance cue to new trade and other recervables originated net of these aerecognised

due to settlement 2.3 24

Amourts wrtten off as uncollectable - (0.3}

Impairment losses reversed (3.2) {14)

Effect of movements in exchange rates 0.2 (N Y]

Balance at the end of the year 4.3 50

The aging of trade receivables is presented below:
Trade raceivables

Trade receivables net of impairment
2022 2021 2022 201
Days past due £m [} £m £r
Not yet due a17 &78 793 653
0-30 days 11.7 Q6 11.4 Q1
31-90 days T4 45 7.2 51
?1-180 days 3.0 18 25 1.7
Over 180 days 15 15 0.6 10
105.3 872 101.0 822

No customer represents more than 5% of the total balance of trade receivables (2021 no more than 5%).
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.

Trade and other receivables denominated in currencies other than Sterling comprise £44.1m denominated in US Dollars (2021 £35.7m),
£13.3m dencminated in Euros (2021 £11.8m} and £49.7m dencminated in other currencies (2021: £379m).

QOther debtors
Included in other debtors is an amount of £3.5m (2021; £1.4) which comprises of security depaosits held over farms being constructed.
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

We hold cash and bank deposits which have a maturity of three months or less, to enable us to meet our short-term liquidity
requirements.

Accounting policies
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand form an integral part of our cash
management and are included in interest-bearing loans and borrowings less than one year.

2022 ploval
£m £
Cash ot bark ard in nand 38.8 46.0

The carrying amount of these assets approximates to their fair value.

The credit quality of cash and cash eqguivalents can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings of the counterparty where the
account of deposit is placed.

2022 221 i
Counterparties with external credit ratings Em [
Ato AA- 24.1 242
BEB toBBB 8.0 b4
B- to BB+ 19 50
CCC te CCC- 0.3 04
MNa ratings 4.5 -
388 460

Within our cash and cash equivalents there is a cash balance of £4.5m in our Russian entities of which £3.9m 1s not currently available !
to be used by the Group due to being receved from, or held in, sanctioned banks.

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Our trade and other payabies mainly consist of amounts we owe to our suppliers that have been invoiced or are accrued. They also
include taxes and social security amounts due in relation to our role as an employer,

Accounting policies
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at ther nominal value.

2022 #0721

£m e

Trode payables 36.0 237
Other payables 8.2 76
Accruad experses 61.4 £0.2
Contract habilities inote 24) 101 104
Other taxes ond social security 2.0 8.2
Current trade and other payaoles 1247 1103
Caonrtract labilities (note 24} 0.2 L4
Nor-carrent ooe and othe payables 0.2 14

The average credit period taken for trade purchases is 39 days (2021: 27 days).
Other payobles include an amount of £51m (2021: £3.0m) being repayable on demand with a third-party business partner.

Payables denominated in currencies other than Stetling comprise £559m denominated in US Dotlars (2021: £43 8m), £11.8m denominated
in Euras {2021 £10.5m) and £33.7m denominated in other currencies [2021; £32.6m).

The carrying values of these liabilities are a reasonable approximation of their far values

24. CONTRACT BALANCES

Accounting policy

A contract asset is recognised when the Group's nght to consideration s conditional on something other than the passage of tme, for
example the completion of future performance obligations under the terms of the contract with the customer in some instances, the
Group receives payments from customers based on a biling schedule, as established in the contract, which may not match with the
pattern of performance under the contract.

Where payment is recewved ahead of performance a contract hiability will be created, and where performance obligations are satisfied
ahead of billing, then a contract asset will be recognised.
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24, CONTRACT BALANCES CONTINUED

2022 vl

Em F

Current contract assets 77 77
Non-current contract assets 49 _
Cantract assets (note 21} 12.6 77
Current contract liabilites (10.1) (10.6)
Non-current cantracet iabilites (0.2) (1.4}
Contract habilties {(note 23) {10.3) {120)
Contract Contract

assets liabilities

Em Em

Balance at 1 Juby 2020 51 {115}
Increasas as a result of performance in advance of billing 358 -
Transfers 1o receivables during the year (327 -
Increases as a resylt of kiling ahead of performance - {1093}
Decreases 4s O result of revenue recognised in the year - 108.1
Effect of movements in exchange rates [0.5) a7
Balunce at 30 June 2021 77 (220}
Increases as a resuit of performance In agdvance of bifling 720 -
Tronsfers 10 receivables durng the year (67.3) -
Increases as a resyit of billng ahead of performance - (80.8)
Decreases as aresult of revenue recogrised in the year - 83.4
Effect of movements in exchange rates 0.2 0.9
Balance at 30 June 2022 12.6 (10.3)

In some cases, the Group receives poyments from customers based on a killing scheduie, as established in our contracts. The contract
assets relate to revenue recognised for performance in advance of scheduled billing and have increased as the Group has provided
mora services ahead of the agreed payment schedules for certain contracts. The contract liability relates to payments received in
advance of perfarmance under contract and varies based on performance under these contracts.

The transaction price allocated to partially unsatished performance obligations at 30 June 2022 is £12.3m (2021: £3.6m). It is expectad
that the Group will recognise this revenue over the next four years.

25, PROVISIONS

A provision is a liokility recorded in the Group Balance Sheet, where there is uncertainty over the timing or amount that will be paid, and
is therefore estimated. The main provisions we hold relate te litigation damages, legal provisions, custorner claims and share forfeiture.

Accounting policies

We recognise a provision in the Balance Sheet when an event results in the Group having a current legal or constructive obligation, and
it is probable that we will have to settle the obligation through an cutflow of economic benefits. If the effect is material, we discount
provisions to their present value.

5T Shara Other
litigation forfeitura provisions Total
Em £m £€m £m
Balance at 1 July 2020 10.5 2.3 30 158
Additional provision in the year 0.2 - 27 29
Utihsation of provision 0.2) - [2.3) 2.5
Release of provision - (2.0 (04) (24
Effect of movemen: in exchange rates (1.1} - 0.3 (1.4}
Balance at 20 June 2021 Q4 0.3 27 124
Additional provision in the year - 0.2 0.5 0.7
Uthsation of provision ©.4) - (0.1) {0.5)
Release of provision {0.1) - {0.1) 0.2)
Effect of movement in exchange rates 1.2 - 0.3 15

Balance at 30 June 2022 10.1 0.5 3.3 139
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25. PROVISIONS CONTINUED

2022 2521

Em I

Current 19 13
Non-current 12.0 111
1398 12.4

ST litigation relates specifically to our fitigation only with Sexing Technologies, as described in nate 7.

The share forfeiture provision of £0.5m relates to potential cigims that could be made by untraced members over the next three years,
relating to the rescle proceeds of shares that were identified during the prior year as being forfeited.

Other provisions mainly relate to legal provisions {excluding ST litigation) and customers’ claims. The timing and cash flows associated
with the majority of legal claims are expected to be less than one year. However, for some legal claims the timing of cash flows may be
long term in nature ond are disclosed as such.

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

This note details our treasury management and fnancial risk management objectives and policies, as well os the Group's exposure ond
sensitivity to credit, liquidity, interest and foreign exchange rate risk, and the policies in place to menitor and manage these risks.

Financial risk management objectives

The Group's corporate treasury function provides services to the business, coordinates our access to domestic and international
financial markets, and monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the Group's operations, through internal risk reports that
analyse exposures by degres and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk including currency risk, fair volue interest rate nigk
and price risk), credit risk, liguidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

We seek to minimise the effects of these risks by hedging them using derivative financial instruments. Our use of financial dervatives is
governed by policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk, the use of financial derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity. The Board of
Directors regularly reviews our compliance with policies and exposure limits. The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments,
including derivative inancial instruments, for speculative purposes.

Key financial risks and exposures are menitored through a monthly report to the Beard of Directors, together with an annual Board
review of corporate treasury matters.

Financial risk

The principal financial risks cur activities expose us to are the nsks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and

commodity prices. We use derivative financial instruments to manage our exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and commaodity

price risks, including:

> forward foreign exchange contracts, to hedge the exchange rate risk arising on the sale of goods and purchase of supplies in foreign
currencies;

> interest rate swaps, to mitigate the risk of rising interest rates; and

> forward commodity contracts, 1o hedge commaodity price risk,

Accounting policies

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liakilities in respect of financial instruments are recognised on the Group Balance Sheet when the Group becomes
a party to the instrument’s contractual provisions,

Financiaol liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liakilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance of the conwactua!
arangements entered into and the definitions of a financicl liability and an equity instrument. An equity instrument is any contract that
provides a residual interest in the Group’s assets after deducting all of its liabilities and includes no obligation to deliver cash or other
financial assets. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial habilites and equity instruments are set out below.

Put option arrangements over non-controlling interest
The potential cash payments related to put options issued by the Group over the equity of subsidicry companies are accounted for as
financial licbilites.

The amount that may become payable under the option on exarcise is initially recognised at present value within financial liabilities,
with o corresponding charge directly to equity. The charge to equity is recognised separately as written put options over nan-controlling
interest, adjacent to non-controlling interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries.

Such options are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, in order to accrete the habifity up
to the omount payable under the option at the date at which it first becomes exercisable. The charge arising is recorded as a financing
cost. If the option expires unexercised, the liability is derecognised, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are recognised initially ot fair vaiue at the date a derivative centract is entered into and dre subsequently remegsured to
their fair value at each reporting date. The resulting gain or [0ss is recognised in the Income Statement immediately, unless the
derivative is designated and effective as o hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the Income Statement
depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a inancial asset whereas a derivative with ¢ negative farr value is recognised
as a financial liability. Derivatives are not offset in the financiol statements, unless the Group has both a legally enforceable right and
intention to cffset. A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a nen-current liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument
is more than 12 months and it is not due to be redlised or settled within 12 months. Other denvatives are presented as current assets or
current liabilities.

The far value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that we would receive or pay Lo terminate the swap ot the balance sheet
date, taking into account current interest rates and the creditworthiness of the swap counterparties.

The fair values of forward exchange contracts and forward commodity contracts are their quoted market price at the balance shest
date, which is the prezent value of the guoled (orward price.

Hedging activities
The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments in respect of foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and commaodity
risk in fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net investments in foreign operations.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged

item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the

inception of the hedge and on an ongeoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument is effective in offsetting

chonges in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk, which is when the hedging relationship meets all

of the following hedge effectiveness requirements:

> there is an ecanomic relationship between the hedged iterm and the hedging instrument;

> the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic relationship; and

> the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the guantity of the hedged item that the Group
actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item,

If @ hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectivenass requirement relating to the hedge ratio but the risk management
objective for that designated hedging relationship remains the same, the Group adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship
{i.e. rebalances the hedge) so that it meets the gualifying criteric again.

The Group designates the full change in the fair value of o forward contract li.e. including the forward elements) as the hedging
instrument for ¢l of its hedging relationships involving forward contracts.

The Group designates only the intrinsic value of option contracts as a hedged item, i.e. excluding the tme value of the option. The
changes in the fair value of the aligned time value of the option are recognised in Other Comprehensive Inceme and accumulated in
the cost of hedging reserve. If the hedged item is transaction related, the time value is reclassified to the Income Statement when the
hedged item affects the Income Statement. If the hedged item is time-period related, then the amount accumulated in the cost of
hedging reserve is reclassified to the Income Statement on a rational basis, applying straight-line amortisation. Those reclassified
amounts are recognised in the Income Statement in the same line as the hedged item. If the hedged item is a non-financial item, then
the cmount accumulated in the cost of hedging reserve is removed directly from equity and included in the initiaf carrying amount of the
recognised non-financial item. Furthermore, if the Group expects that some or all of the loss aceumulated in cost of hedging reserve will
not be recovered in the future, that amount is immediately reclassified to the income Statement.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of denvatives and other gualifying hedging instruments that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging
reserve, and limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item from inception of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Income Statement and is included in the ‘other gains and losses' lina item.

Amounts previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumalated in equity are reclassified to the Income Statementin
the periods when the hedged item affects the Income Statement, in the same fine as the recognised hedged item. However, when the
hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or @ non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are removed from eguity and included in the initial measurement
of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability. This transfer does not offect Other Comprehensive Income. Furthermore, if
the Group expects that some or all of the loss accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve will not be recovered in the future, that
amount is immediately reclassified to the Income Statement.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof) ceases to meet the qualifying criteria
{after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. The
discontinuction is accounted for prospectively. Any gain or loss recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in cash
flow hedge reserve ot that time remeains in equity and is reclassified to the Income Statement when the forecast transaction occurs.
When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumnulated in the cash flow hedge reserve is reclassified
immediately to the Income Statement.

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts
calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts enable the Group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on the
fair value of issued fixed-rate debt held and the cash flow exposures on the issued variable-rate deabt held. The fair value of interest rate
swaps at the reporting date is determined by discounting the future cash flows using the yield curves at the reporting date and the
credit risk inherent in the contract. The average interest rate is based on the outstanding balonces at the end of the financial year.
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

As the criticol terms of the interest rate swop contracts and their corresponding hedged items are the same, the Group performs o
qualitative assessment of effectiveness and it is expected that the value of the interest rate swap contracts and the value of the
correspanding hedged items will systematically change in opposite directions, in response to movements m the underlying interest rates.
The main scurce of hedge ineffectiveness in these hedge relationships is the effect of the counterparty and the Group's own credit risk
an the fair value of the interest rate swep contracts, which is not reflected in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the change
ininterest rates. No other sources of ineffectiveness emerged from these hedging relationships.

Net investment hedges

Hedges of net investments in foreign opérations are accounted for similarly to cash fliow hedges. Any gain or loss on the foraign currency
forward contracts relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in the
foreign currency transiation reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Income
Staterment, and is included in the ‘other gains and losses' line item.

Gains and losses on the hedging instrument accurmulated in the foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified to the Income
Statemeant on the disposal or partial disposal of the foreign operation.

We only apply net investment hedge accountmg in the Group Financial Statements.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that Group entities can continue as going concerns, while maximising the return to
shareholders by optimising our debt and equity bolance, The Group's capital structure consists of debt, which includes the borrowings
disclosed in note 27, cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent, comprising issued capital,
reserves and retained earnings, as disclosed in note 31.

Gearing ratio
The Group keeps its capital structure under review and menitors it monthly to ensure the gearing ratio remains below 60%. The Group is
not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. The gearing ratio at the year end was as foliows:

2022 217

£m =

Delbt (see note 27) 223.8 1516
Cash and casn equivalents (see note 22} {38.8} 4600
Net dept (see rote 32) 185.0 1056
Equity 5721 4966
Net debt to equity ratio 32% 21%

Debt is defined as long and short-term borrowings, including lease obligations as detailed i note 27.

Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group attributable to equity holders of the Parent.
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Categories of financial instruments

We have categorised inancial instruments held at valuation inte a three-level fair value hierarchy, based on the priority of the inputs
to the valuation technique in accordance with IFRS 13. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs [Level 3). If the inputs used to measure fair value fall
within different levels of the hierarchy, we base the category leve!l on the lowest priority level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement of the instrument in its entirety. We have estimated the fair values of the Group's cutstanding interest rate swaps by
caleulating the present value of future cash flows, using appropriate market discount rates, representing Level 2 fair value
measurements as defined by IFRS 13.

2022 Carrying value 21 Cuy g e
Levell Level 2 Lavel 3 Total Lle.e? s Tl
£m £m £m £m £ B

Financial assets

Othar investments 6.5 - 3.7 10.2 20 10.4 23 14.7
Trade receivables and other debtors,

excluding crepayments and contiact

assets (see note 21) - 1170 - 1170 - PLG - g1
Cash and ¢ash equivalents - 88 - 388 - 460 - 4460
Dervative instruments in non-

designated hedge occounting

relationships - 1.0 - 10 - 01 - 01
Derivative instruments in designated
hedge accounting relatonships - 22 - 2.2 - - -

6.5 159.0 3.7 1469.2 20 148.4 23 1527

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables, excluding
other taxes and social security

see note 23} - (115.9) - (115.9} - {102.1) - (1021}
Loans and overdrafts {see rote 27} - (189.2) - (189.2) - {123.3) - (123.3)
Leasing obligations (see ncte 28) - (34.6) - (34.6) - (283 - (28.3)

Derivative instruments in non-
designated hedge accounting

relationships - {0.9) - (0.9} - - - -

Dernvative ‘nstruments in designated

hedge accounting relationships - (0.3) - {0.3) - - -

Put option over non-controlling interast - (7.0) - (7.0) - (5.1} - 6.1

Deferred consideratior (see rote 38) - - {L.5) (1.5) - (0.4 1.7 (21
- (347.9) {1.5) (349.4) - (260.2) {17 {2619)

We hold a strategic non-controlling interest in Caribou Biosciences, inc (‘Caribou’), presented above within Other Investments (note 19).
In July 2021, Caribou shores storted publicly trading on the NASDAQR, and was reclassified from a Level 2 instrument to Level 1. There have
been no transfers between levels during the year.

Fereign currency risk management
We undertake transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and manetary liabilities (excluding short-term
amounts related to our ongeing trade, recognised as trade receivables and trade payables) at the reporting date were as follows:

Liabilities Assets
2022 202! 2022 20N
£m £ £m £
Us Dollar (88.0) 677 2.2 21
Euro {11.3) {12.1) 0.5 05

Canadian Dollar {0.4) - -
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Foreign currency Income Statement sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to movements in the US Dollar, Euro, Brazilian Real, Mexican Peso, Chinese Yuan and Russian Rouble
exchange rates.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to ¢ 10% and 20% increase and decrease in Sterling against these currencies. 10% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internclly to key management and represents our assessment of a significant
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10% or 20% change in foreign currency rates. it includes external loans, as well as loans to
foreign operations within the Group where the loan is denominated in a currency other than the lender or borrower's currency. A positive
number below indicates an increase in profit when Sterling weakens against the relevant currency. A strengthening of Sterling against
the relevant currency would produce an equal but opposite reduction in profit, and the balances below would be negotive.

20% cutrency movement 10% currency movement

2022 201 2022 2071

Em £ £m £

Euro 28 24 1.4 12
Us Doliar 1.2 1.2 0.6 Qb
Brazilian Real 27 28 13 14
Meaxican Peso 3.1 28 1.5 14
Chinese Yuan 2.3 70 1.2 35
Russian Rouble 1.5 13 0.7 06

Forward foreign exchange contracts
The Group's policy is to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts, to cover specific foreign currency payments and receipts.
The following table details the forward foreign currency contracts outstanding as at the year end:

Average exchange rate Contract value Fair value
Foreign 2022 N 2022 2031
2022 204 currency £m I £m N

Outstanding contracts
Buy CHF 1.18 - CHF 09 - - -
Sed CNY 8.2 <03 CNY 1.2 20 - -
Buy AUD 1.76 185 440 18 10 - -
Buy PHP 67.01 - PHP 0.3 - - -
Sed PHP - 6778 PHP - Ql - -
SelRUB - 10195 RUB - 01 - -
Buy EUR 0.86 086 SUR 7.2 83 - -
Se! PLN - 530 PLN - 0% - -
Buy MXN 2474 28.03 MXN 29 54 01 01
Buy USD 1.23 - usD 11 - (0.1) -
Seil Us0 - 140 UsSD - 47 - 0.1
Buy CHF Sell EUR 1.01 - CHF 3.4 - - -
Buy EUR.Sell CHF - 109 CHF - 03 - -
Buy USD/Sell UaA 33.06 - JAH 0.3 - - -
Buy USD.Sell BRL 490 505 BRL 1.8 1. 0.1 -
Buy USDS5all CLP - 72003 CLP - 0.3 - -
Buy USD:. Sell CNY 6.69 543 CNY 3.7 17 - -
Buy PHP Sell USD 53.53 4882 PHP 74 50 (0.2) -
Buy CAD/Ser USD 1.29 - CAD Q.4 - - -
Buy JSD.'Sell CAD - 1.23 CAD - 2.3 - -
Buy UsSD-5ait gUR 1.06 119 =R 0.3 2.3 - -
Buy JSD-Sel RUB 56.85 7258 RUB 1.2 i5 (0.1) -
Buy JSD Sel 'N= 78.76 7306 MR 1.3 28 - -
Buy USD S5al AR 1609 1441 Z4R 3.4 a2 - -
Huy USD:- 5elt ARS 12969 ?785 ARS 0.3 22 - -
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Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk, as Group entities borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. We manage this risk
centrally, by rmaintaining an apgropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings, using interest rate swaps. We regularly review
cur hedging activities, to clign with our interest rate views and defined risk appetite, thereby ensuring we apply optimal hedging
strategies to minimise the adverse impoct of luctuations in interest expense through different interest rate cycles.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section
of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Wae havo dotarmined the sensitivity analyses Leluw, buased on the Group's exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and
non-derivative instruments, ot the balance sheet date. For floating rate liabilities, we prepared the analysis assuming the liability
outstonding at the balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year. A 1.0 percentage point increase or decredse is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key managemaent and is our assessment of a significant change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1.0 percentage point higher or lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's prefit would have
decreased or increased by £1.8m (2021: decrease/increase by £1.2m). This impact s smaller than would otherwise be the case, due to our
fixed-rate hedging.

Interest rate swap contracts

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees 1o exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts,
calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. These contracts enable us to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on the
cash fow exposures on the variable-rate debt we hold. We determine the fair value of interest rate swaps at the reporting date by
discounting the future cash flows, using the yield curves at the reporting date and the credit risk inherent in the contract. This fair value
is disclosed on the following page. The average interest rata is based on the outstanding balances at the end of the financial year.

Cash flow hedges
The following table detdils the notional principal amounts and remaining terms of interest rate swap contracts outstanding, as at the
reporting date:

Average contract

fixed interest rate Notional principal amount Fair value

2022 2 2022 20N 2022 2071
Cutstanding receive floating poy fixed contracts % ‘o £m Tim £m £
USD interest rate swaps
Ore 10 ive years 3.32 - 37.0 - 03 -
EUR interest rate swaps
One o five years Q.36 - 215 - Q.6 -
GBP interest rate swaps
One to five years - 113 - 50 - -

The interest rate swaps settle on a quarteriy basis. The corresponding floating rate on the interest rate swaps is three months. We settle
the difference betwaen the fixed and floating interest rate on a net basis.

Interest rate swap contracts that exchange floating-rate interest amounts for fixed-rate interest amounts are designated as cash flow
hedges, to reduce our cash flow exposure resulting from varicble interest rates on borrowings. The interest rate swaps and the interest
payments on the loan occur simultaneously and we recognise the amount deferred in equity in the Income Statement, over the period
that the floating rate interest payments on debt affect the Income Statement.

Commeodity hedges
The Group hedges both feed and slaughter exposures using Chicage Mercantile Exchange lean hog, corn and soybean meal
commaodity futures contracts.

Average price Natienal principal amount Fair value

2022 2021 2022 202 2022 el
Commodity hedge uss$ (%S £m £ £m I
Open commeadity contracts as at June
Lean hog 092 0.79 10.2 76 (0.1} 08
Caorn 6£.87 4,78 (4.9 (4.3) 0.1 10
Soybear meal 390 182 (3.0 (35 01 (0.1

2.3 {0.2) 0l 01
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Net investment hedges

The Group's Net Investment Palicy is 1o hedge up to 70% of the Net Investment Value of its wholiy owned subsidiaries. The Group has

a pre-existing EUR12.5m Net Investment Hedge originaliy entered into on 25 November 2019 as a EUR 5 million hedge and subsequently
increased to EUR 12.5 milion on 28 June 2021 where the Group designated the first EUR 12.5 million of the net assets of Pig Improvernent
Company Espafia S.A. and Bovec S.A. as a hedged item using EUR 12.5 million of berrowings as a net investment hedge, In February
2022, the Group entered into an additional Net Investment Hedge designating the first EUR 25 million Net Assets of its subsidiary Fyfield
Holland BY net as the hedged item in a Net Investment Hedge using USD28m of borrowings convarted to a EUR25m liability using a cross
currency swap as the related hedging instrument. The Company entered inte the EUR25m Cross Currency Swap on 28 February 2022
generating a synthetic EUR25m liability to match the equivalent portion of its investment in this subsidiary.

The table below shows a reconciliation of the gains or loss deferred in equity:

2022 2021

£m zm

Loss at the start of the year ©.1) 05}
Effective {losses) gains recognised i1 equity In penod (0.7 04
Bolance carried forword in equity os effachve Insses {0.8) 01}

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that o counterparty will default on its contractual obligations, resulting in financial loss to the Group. We have a
policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties. We regularly monitor our exposure and the credit ratings of our counterparties,
and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure on fingncial
instruments is controlled by counterparty limits that the Board reviews and approves annually.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. We carry out
ongoing credit evaluation of the financial condition of accounts receivable.

Liquidity risk management

The Board of Directors has ultimate responsibility for managing liquidity risk. We manage this risk by maintaining adequate reserves and
banking factities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the moturity profiles of financial ossets
and fiabilities.

Liguidity and interest risk tables
For non-derivative financial liabilities, see notes 27, 28 and 38.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities, excluding trade
payables and cther creditors which are short term and, as disclosed in note 23, have an average credit peried of 3¢ days (2021 27 days),
We have drawn up the table based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial lickilities, using the earliest date on which we can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Weighted
avercge
effective Less than 3Imonths—
intarest rate 1month 1-3 months 1year 1-Syears 5+ years Total
% £m £m £m £m £m £m
2022
Loans and borrowings 2.31 8.4 1.2 4.6 183.0 - 197.2
Lease ncbilites 291 1.0 3.0 6.8 20.7 6.1 37.6
Deferred conside at on - - - - 0.5 - 0.5
Varnable interest -gte instruments 2.41 Q.4 4.2 11.4 204.2 6.1 235.3
201
Loans ana barrowings 1.13 3% 0L o9 131135 - 1287
Lease lan’lties 281 - 2.4 71 213 28 338
Deferred consideration . - 0.z 12 O - 17
Varnake interest rate mstruments 16& =3 29 182 1332 28 1640

The following table details the Group's expected maturity for other non-derivative inancial assets, excluding trade receivables and
other debtors. We have drawn up this table based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the assets, including interest we will
earn on them, except where we expect the cash flow to occur in a different period.

Weighted
average
effective Less than 3 months—
interest rate 1month 1-3menths 1yeat 1-5 years 5+ years Tatal
% £m £m Em £m £m £m
2022
Variaple irterest rote instraments 1.12 38.8 - - - - 388
2021

Variaole interest -ate instraments 103 382 - 78 - - 460
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

The Group has financing focilities with o total unused amownt of £77.8m (2021: £129.3m) at the balonce sheet dote, We expect to meet
our other obligations from operating cosh flows and the proceeds of maturing financial assets. We expect to reduce the debt to equity
ratio, as borrowings decrease through repayment from operating cash flows.

The following table details the Group's liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments. We have drawn up the table based on
the undiscounted net cash outflows on dervative instruments thot settte on a net basis and the undiscounted gross outflows on
derivatives that require gross settlement. When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, we have determined the amaount
disclosed by reference to the projected interest and foreign currency rates, as illustrated by the yield curves at the reperting date.

Less than 3 months—
Tmonth 1-3 months Tyaar 1-5 years 5+ years Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

2022

Foreign exchange cantracts 0.2) - - - - {0.2)
Commaodity swaps - - 0.1 - - 0.1

Interast rate swaps - 0.1 0.2 C.1 - 0.4

2021

Foreign exchange cantracts - - - - - -

Commodity swaps 0.3 (SR 01 - - 01

Interest rate swaps - _ - -

Commedity swaps and interest rate swaps are always settled on a net basis. Foreign exchange contracts can be settled on a net or
gross basis; the net cash flows presented in the table above reflect an inflow of £737m and cutflow of £73.9m (2021: inflow of £88.4m and
outflow of £88.4m).

27. LOANS AND BORROWINGS
The Group's borrowing for funding and liquidity purposes comes from a range of committed bank facilities.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

We initially recognise interest-bearing loans and borrowings at their fair value, less attributable transaction costs. After this initial
recognition, we state them at amortised cost and recognise any difference between the cost and redemption value in the Income
Statement over the biorrowings” expected life, on an effective interest rate basis. The carrying values of these liabilities are a reasonchble
approximation of their fair values.

2022 7020
Em £
Non-current liabilities
Unsecured bank loans 1821 1094
Obligations under leases 245 123
206.6 1287
Current liobilities
Unsecured bank loans and overdrafts 71 139
Obligations under leases 10.1 0
172 229
Total interest-bearing liabilities 2238 1518
Terms and debt repayment schedule
Terms and conditions of outstanding loans and overdrafts were as follows:
2022 2022 2031
Turemay IMterestrole £m e
Revolving credit facility and overdraft GBP 2.6% 9259 432
Revolving credit facility, term loan and overdraft uso 30% 773 597
Revolving credit facility and overdraft EUR 1.4% 10.8 107
Obligations under leases UsD 20% 34.6 283
Other unsecured bank borrowings Other 2.2% 5.2 27
Total interest-bearing liabilities 2238 1516

The above revolving credit focilities are unsecured. Information about the Group's exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risks is
shown in note 26.
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27, LCGANS AND BORROWINGS CONTINUED

2022 200 !

Loans and berrowings {excluding leases) comprise amounts talling due: £Em i
In one year or less or on damand 80 147
N more than one year but not more thor two years - -
In more than twoe years but nat more than five years 1823 1099

190.3 1246
Less uramaortised issue costs (1.1) 13

189.2 1233
Current liabilities (7.1) {139
Non-current liahilities 182.1 1094

At the balance sheet date, the Group's credit facilities comprised a £150m multi-curniency revolving credit facility {RCF'), a USD125 million
RCF and a USD20 million bond and guarantee facility. The original term of the facility was for three years to 24 August 2023 with the
option to extend the maturity date by a further year before each of the first and second anniversaries of the signing date. The
Company's credit facility also inciudes an uncommittied £100m accordion option, which can be requeasted on a maximum of three
occcasions over the lifetime of the facility to fund the Group's business development plans. On 24 August 2021, the Group and its lenders
extended the facility by a further year to 24 August 2024.

With effect from 26 August 2022, the Group and its lenders increased the Company's multi-currency RCF by £40m to £190m and the USD
RCF by USD25m to USCNSOm, and extended the maturity date of the total facilities to 24 August 2025.

As port of its interest rate hedging strategy, the Group hos entered into interest rate swops 1o hedge variable interest rates. At the
balance sheet date, bank loan and overdrafts include borrowings of USDAbm fixed at 3.3175%, and borrowings of USD28m, swappead via
a cross currency swap into EUR25m, fixed ot 0.34625%, excluding applicable bank margins.

28. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASES
Alease is a commitment to make a payment in the future, primarily in relation to property, plant and machinery and motor vehicles.

Accounting policies
In accordance with IFRS 16, we recognise as an expense any payments made in respect of short-term leases {those with a term of less
than 12 months) and leases for low-value items on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.

For all other leases we recognise a liability at the date at which the leased asset is made available for use, and a corresponding
nght-of-use asset is recognised and depreciated over the term of the lease (see note 17).

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the future lease payments, excluding any payments relating to non-lease
components. Future lease payments include fixed payments, in-substance fixed payments, and varidble lease payments that are
based on anindex or a rate, less ony lease incentives receivable, Lease liabilities also take into account amounts payable under residual
value guarantees and payments to exercise options, to the extent that it is reasonably certain that such payments will be made. The
payments are discounted ot the rate implicit in the lease or, where that cannot be measured, at an incremental borrowing rate

We remeasure the lease liability (and maoke a carresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset] whenaver:

> Thelease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of the exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease
lhiability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using o revised discount rate.

> Thelease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or & change in expected payment under o guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the lease liability 1§ remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless
the lease payments change 15 due to a change in a flaating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

> Alease contract is madified, and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lecse payments using a revised discount rate.

The Group dig not make any such adjustments during the petiods presented. !

The changes in the lease liabilities are as follows:

20212

£m
Balagnce at the start of tne year 283 311
_eases enmered into duting tne year 157 104
Lemses lerminaten eqry (0.3) 1.0
Paymerts made (12.4) {125
Interest 1.1 08
=fect of moverrenis ir exchonge ‘otes 2.2 {05}
Balance at the end of the year 346 283
Curert 10.1 20
Nor-current 24.5 1932
34.6 283

At 30 June 2022, the Group 15 committed to £0.1m {2021 £0.1m} for short-term leases.
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28. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASES CONTINUED

We have draown up the table based on the undiscounted cash flows of the obligations under leases, using the earliest date on which we
can be reguired ta pay

2022 5571
£m Lo
FY22 - 25
FY23 10.8 80
FYZ24 8.2 6.1
EY25 57 40
FY24 4.1 24
Fy27 2.7 14
Fy28 20 12
Fy¥29 18 o7
FY 30 12 a2
After FY30 1.1 01
376 3346

Presented as:
Currarnt 108 Q5
Non-currant 26.8 241
376 336

Lease obligations denominatad in currencies other than Sterling comprise £16.0m denominated in US Dollars {2021: £15.9m), £4.0m
dencminated in Euros {2021: £2.7m} and £10.4m denominated in other currencies (2021 £3.0m).

29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group cperates a number of defined contribution and defined benefit pension schemes covering many of its employees. The
princigal funds are the Milk Pension Fund (‘'MPF'} and the Dalgety Pension Fund ('DPF'} in the UK, which are defined benefit schemes.
The assets of these funds are held separately from the Group's assets, are administered by trustees and managed professionally.

Accounting policies

Defined contribution pension schemes

A number of our amployees are members of defined contribution pension schemes. We charge contributions to the Income Statement
as they become payable under the scheme rules. We show differences between the contributions payable and the amount we have
paid as either accruals or prepayments in the Balance Sheet. The schemes' assets are held separately from the Group's dssets.

Defined benefit pension schemes

The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes for some of its employees. These schemes are closed to new members and to
further accrual. We calculate our net obligation separately for each scheme, by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned, in return for their service to date. We discount that benefit to determine its present value and deduct the fair value of the
plan's assets (ot bid pricel. The hability discount rate we use is the market yield at the balance sheet date on high-quality corporate
bonds, with terms to maturity opproximating our pension liabilities. Qualified actuarias perform the calculations, using the projected
unit method.

We recognise actuarial gains and losses in equity in the petiod in which they occur, through the Group Stotement of Comprehensive
Income. Actuarial gains and losses include the difference between the expected and actua return on scheme assets and experience
gains and losses on scheme liabilities.

Genus and the other participating employers are jointly and severally liable for the MPF's obligations. We account for our section of the
scheme and our share of any orphan assets and liabilities, and provide for any amounts we believe we will have to pay under our joint
and several hability. The joint and several liability also means we have a contingent liability for the scheme’s obligations that we have
not accounted for.

Under the joint and several liability, we initially recognise any changes in our share of orphan assets and liabiities in the Income
Statement. After this initial recognition, any actuarial gains and losses on the orphan assets and liabilities are recognised directly in
equity through the Group Statement of Changes in Equity, in the period in which they occur.

During the year, the DPF defined benefit pension scheme purchased annuities in order to hedge longevity risk for pensioners within the
scheme. As permitted by IAS 19 the Group has opted to recognise the difference between the fair value of the plan assets and the cost
of the policy as an actuarial loss jin Other Comprehensive Income.

We measure the fair value our qualifying insurance policy assets to be the deemed present value of the related obligaticn,
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29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED

Retirement benefit obligations
The financial positions of the defined benefit schemes, as recorded in accordance with |AS 19 and IFRIC 14, are aggregated for
disclosure purposes. The liability split by principal scheme is set out below.

2022 2621

£m £

The Milk Pansion Furd - Genus's share - 2.2
The Dalgety Pension Fund - -
National Pig Development Pension Fund 0.1 03
Post-retirement healthcare 0.6 04
Otner unfunded schameas 7.6 80
Overall net pension liability 8.3 111

Overdil, we expect to pay £1.0m {2021: £41m) in contributions to defined benefit plans in the 2023 financial year.

The defined benefit plans are administered by trustee boards that are legally separated from the Group. The trustee board of each
pension fund consists of reprgsentatives who are employees, former employees or aré independent from the Company. The boards of
the pension funds are required by law to act in the best interest of the plan participants and are responsible for setting certain policies,
such as investment and contribution policies, and for the governance of the fund.

The defined benefit pension schemes expose the Group to actuarial risks such as greater than expected longevity of members, lower
than expected return on investments and nigher than expected inflation, which may increase the plans’ iabilities or reduce the value of
their assets.

UK pensions are regulated by The Pensions Regulator, a non-departmental public body established under the Pensions Act 2004
and sponsored by the Department for Work and Pensions, operating within o legal regulatory framework set by the UK Parliament.
The Pensions Regulator has statutory objectives set out in legislation, which include promoting and improving understanding of the
good administration of work-based pensions, protecting member benefits and regulating occupational defined benefit andg
contribution schemeas. The Pensions Regulator’s statutory objectives and regulatory powers are described on its website at
thepensionsregulator.gov.uk.

All defined benefit schemes are registered as an occupational pension plan with HMRC and are subject to UK legislation and oversight
from The Pensions Regulator. UK legislation requires that pension schemes are funded prudently and valued at least every three years.
Separate valuations are required for each scheme. Within 15 months of each valuation date, the plan trustees and the Group must
agree any contributions required to ensure that the planis fully funded over time, on @ suitably prudent measure.

Funding plans are individually agreed with the respective trustees for each of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes, taking into
account local regulatory requirements.

On 20 November 2020, the High Court ruled thot individuaol transtfer payments made since 17 Moy 1990 would need to be equalised for
the effects of GMP. This judgment followed on from the previous judgment on 26 October 2018, where the High Court ruled that schemes
had a legal obligation to pay benefits allowing for GMP equalisation, resulting in an additional hability being recognised. The previous
judgment had not considered histonc transfer values. Genus's pension schemes are alse affected by this ruling, resulting in an
aggregate past service charge of £2.3m in the period, being £0.9m for the DPF and £1.4m for the MPF.

The Milk Pension Fund ['MPF’)

The MPF was previcusly operated by the Milk Marketing Board and was alse open te staff working for Milk Marque Ltd (the principal
employer, now known as Community Foods Group Limited), National Milk Records ple, First Milk Ltd, hauliers associated to First Milk Ltd,
Lairy Farmers of Britain Ltd (which went into receivership in June 2009} and Milk Link Ltd.

We have accounted for our section of the scheme and our share of any orphan assets and habilities, which together represent
approximately 86% of the MPF [(2021: 86%). Although the MPF s managed on a sectionalised basis, it is a last man standing scheme’,
which means that all participating employers are jointly and severally liabie for all of the fund's liabilities. With effect from 30 June 2013,
Gerus's remaining active memibers cedased aocruing benefits in the fund and became deferred pensioners.

The most recent actuarial triennial valuation of the MPF was at 31 March 2021 and was carried out by qualified actuaries. The valuation
has been agreed by the trustees.

The principal actuarial assumptions adopted in the 2021 valuation were that:

> investment réturns on existing assets would exceed fixed-interest gilt yields by 1.6% per annurm until 31 March 2030, then by 0.5% per
annum thereafter;

> Caonsumer Price Index 'CPI') price inflation is expected to be 0.7% per annum lower than Retail Price Index ('RPY) price inflation until
31 March 2030, then less 01% p.a. thereofter; aond

> pensions in poyment and pensions in deferment would increase in future in line with CPI price inflation, subject to vanous minimum
and maximum increases.

At 31 March 2021, the market value of the fund's assets was £492m. This representad approximately 103% of the value of the uninsured
liabilities, which were £480m at that date.
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29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED

The surplus in the fund as a whole, by reference to the 31 March 2021 valuation, was £12m (of which Genus's notional share was £10mj.
Reflecting the improvement in the funding position and with effect from 1 Septamber 2021, no deficit repair contributions are payable
but funding the scheme's operating expenses of £1.1m per annum was agreed to be paid, rising thereafter by 3.4% per annum until
30 September 2026.

The disclosures required under 1AS 19 have been calculated by an independent actuary, based on accurate calculations carried out as
at 31 March 2021 and updaoted to 30 June 2022.

At 30 June 2022, the MPF was in an overall net pension asset position of £71.4m. Howaver, the Company does not have the unilateral
right to this surplus and therefore in line with IFRIC 14, the recognition of this asset is restricted.

Dalgety Pension Fund ('DPF")
The most recent actuarial valuation of the DPF was at 31 March 2021 and was carried out by gualified actuaries.

The principal actuarial assurnptions adopted in the 2021 valuation were that:

> investment returns on existing assets is gilt yields less 0.35% per annum;

> CPlprice inflation is expected to be 0.7% per annum lower than RPI price inflation until 2030, then RPI curve from 2030 onwards; and

> pensions in payment and pensions in deferment would increase in future in line with CPI price inflation, subject to various minimum
and maximum Increases.

The market value of the available assets at 31 March 2021 was £538m. The value of those ossets represented approximately 100% of the
value of the uninsured liakilities, which were £937m at 31 March 2021. Under the funding agreement, the Company will not have to make
deficit repair contributicns.

The disclosures required under IAS 19 have been calculated by an independent actuary, based on accurate calculations carried out as
ot 31 March 2021 and updated to 30 June 20221,

At 30 June 2022, the DPF, which includes a £20.5m separate reserve held against future unknown liabilities materialising, was inan
overall net pension asset position of £6.6m. However, the Company does not have the unilateral right to this surplus and therefore in line
with IFRIC 14, the recognition of this asset is restricted.

The primary bulk annuity policy was secured with an insurance company in July 1999, which matched the benefit entittement of almost
all of the fund's current and deferred pension liabilities at that time. The value of the policy and related liabkilities at 30 June 2022 was
£528m (2027 £654m). We do not have any legal rights to any surplus relating to these bulk annuity policies.

National Pig Development Company Pension Fund (‘NPD’)

The Group operates a closed defined benefit scheme for o smail number of former employees of the National Pig Development
Company Limited. The total market value of scheme assets and liabilities at 30 June 2022, under the provisions of IAS 19, were £5.4m
{(2021: £6.3m) and £5.5m (2021: £6.4m), respectively.

The most recent actuarial triennial valuation of the NPD was at 30 June 2020 and was carried out by qualified actuaries. The valuation
has been agreed by the trustees.

The principal actuarial assumptions adopted in the 2020 valuation were that:

> investment returns on existing assets is gilt yields less 0.35% per annum;

> CPl price inflation is expected to be 0.5% per annum lower than RPI price inflation; and

> pensions in payment and pensions in deferment would increase in future in fine with CPI price inflation, subject to various minimum
and maximum increases.,

The market value of the available assets at 30 June 2020 was £61m. The value of those assets represented approximately 68% of the
value of the uninsured liabilities, which were £2.0m at 30 June 2020. Under the trustee prepared schedule of contributions, Genus is
required to make deficit repair contributions of £5C0,000 per annum commencing 1 July 2021,

The disclosures required under 1AS 19 have been calculated by an independent actuary, based on accurate calculations carried out as
at 30 June 2020 and updated to 30 Jung 2022,

Other unfunded schemes
When the Group acquired Sygen International ple in 2005, it also acquired three unfunded defined benefit schemes and an unfunded
retirement health benefit plan, which it now operates for the benefit of the previous Group's senior employees and Executives.

Unfunded defined benefits schemes

The scheme liabilities for the three unfunded defined benefit schemeas amounted to £6.1m {2021 £4.6m), based on 1AS 19's methods and
assumptions. This amount is included within pension liatilities in the Group Bolance Sheet. It also operates several unfunded defined
benefits which amounted to £1.6m {2021: £1.4m). Interest on pension scheme liabilities amounted to £0.2m {2021: £0.2m). The disclosures
required under 1AS 19 have been calculated by an independent actuary, using the principal assumptions used to calculate the scheme
linbilities as for the defined benefit schemes.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED

Post-retirement haalthcare

The scheme liabilities for the unfunded retirement health benefit plan amounted to £0.5m (2021: £8.6m). based on 1AS 19's methods and
assumptions. This amount is incluced within retirement benefit obligations in the Group Balance Sheet. Interest on plan liakilities
amounted to Enil {2021 £ril),

The principal assumptions used to calculate the plan liakilities were that the discount rate would be 3.9% (2021: 190%) and that the
long-term rate of medical expense inflation would be 6.9% (2021: 6 9%).

Aggregated position of defined benefit schemes

2022 202

Em Hias]
Present value of furded obhgations {includes Genus's 86% share o MPF (2027 84%) 857.6 10977
Present value of unfunded obligations 8.4 89
Total present value of coligations 866.0 11064
Fair value of ptan assets includes Gerus's Bé% share of MPF (2021: B4%)) (936.3} {1,147.2]
Restricted recognition o asset {MPF and DPF} 78.6 B8
Recognition of additional iability {MPF) - 429
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 8.3 111

Each of the defined benefit schemes manages risks through a variety of methods and strategies, including equity protection, to limit

the downside risk of falls in equity markets, as well as inflation and interest rate hedging. By funding its defined benefits schemes, the

Group is exposed to the risk that the cost of meeting its obligations is higher than anticipated. This could occur for several reasons,

for example:

> Investment returns on the schemes’ assets may be lower than anticipated, especially if falls in asset values are not matched by
similar falls in the value of the schemes’ liabilities.

> The level of price inflation may be higher than that assumed, resuiting in higher payments from the schemes.

> Scheme members may live langer than assumed, for example due to advances in healthcare Members may alsc exercise {or not
exercise) options in o way that leads to increases in the schemes'’ ligbilities, for exampie through early retirement or commutation of
pensicn for cash.

> Legislative changes could also lead to an increase in the schemes' liabilities.

Aggregated position of defined benefit schemes
The fair value of the total plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category is as follows:

Lavell Level 2 Level 3 2022 Leag 1 e 2 12y s 2 2021
£m £m £m £m Hiad £ S
Equities - 281 - 281 - 585 - 585
Diversified growth funds - 59.5 - 595 02 F80 - 78,2
_lability drniven investments - 1223 - 1223 - 1168 - 1168
Gilts and corporate bonds - 100.5 - 100.5 - 1211 - 1211
Casn 4.3 4.3 - 8.6 b 4.0 - 57
Prooerty 27 - 35.4 38.1 39 - 344 383
Oirect ferding - 2.5 328 353 - 37 274 311
Bulk gnnuity oohcy - - 5439 5439 - 46775 &775
Other - - - - - - - -
7.0 317.2 612.1 936.3 57 4022 7393 1,.472

Note:

Level T valued using unadjusted guoted prices in active markets for identicad financial instruments.
Level 2: valued using techniques based on information that con be obtained from observable market data.
Level 3: valued using techniques incorporating information other than observable market data.

Movement in the liability for defined benefit obligations

2022 22

£m i~

Liability for definea benefit coligations at Tne start of the year (iIncluding the bo k orna ty poncy (CPRD 1,106.6 11693
Benefits poa oy the plars (55.7) 578!
Currart sersce costs and interest 20.7 188
Actuana! losses Igains) recogrised on funa habities ans ng from changes in demographic assamptons 7.0 2.7
Actuana gars -ecogn sed on fund tabiies aris ng from changes 1 Anancial assLTptons {220.0) 122.4)
Actuarallosses (ga nsi recognsea on fund tabi' ies ar sing “om expenerce iother 6.1 109!
Reclassified fror gocraals - 07
~ast service cost 0.4 23
Exchange rate ad ustren: 09 0.7

Liability for defined benefit obligations at the end of year 864.0 11384
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29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED
Movement in plan assets

2022 2071
£m i
Fair value of plan assets at the start of the year including the bulk annuity policy (DPF) 1,147.2 11825
Aaministration expenses (0.4} (0.4)
Reclassified from accruals - 0.3
Contributions paid into the pilans 35 T4
Benefits paid by the plans (55.7) (578}
interest income on plan assets 213 182
Actuanal losses recognised in oguity (1790.4) 3.7
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the yeor 936.3 11472
Aggregated position of defined benefit schemes
Summary of movements in Group deficit during the year
2022
£m [
Deficit In schemes at the start of the year (11.1) (181}
Administration expenses (0.4) (0.4
Exceptionai cost 0.4) (2.3}
Reclassified from accruals - (0.4
Contributions paid into the plans 35 T4
Net pensiar finance cost 0.2) 10.3)
Actuaral gains recognised during the year 273 223
Movernent in restriction of assats (69.8) oL
Reledse. recognition) of additiong: hability 43.7 (199
Exchange rate adjustment ©9) o7
Deficit in schemes at the end of the year 8.3) 11.1)
Amounts recognised in the Group Income Statement
2022 7021
£m "
Administrative expenses 0.4 04
Interest obligation 20.7 188
Interest income on plan assets (21.3) (189
Interest an acditional hability 0.8 04
Exceptional cost 0.4 23
10 30
The expense is recognised in the following line items in the Group Income Statement
2022 7021
£m b
Admnistrative expenses 0.4 0.4
Exceptional cost 0.4 2.3
Net finance charge 0.2 03
1.0 30
Actuarial losses/{gains) recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
2022 2301
£m 9
Cumulative loss at the start of the year 60.3 633
Actuarial gains recognised during the year (27.3) (223)
Movement in restriction of assets 69.8 01
[Release).recognition of addtional liabiity (43.7) 199
Exchange rate adjustment 09 7
Cumulative loss at the end of the year 60.0 60.3
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
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29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED

Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis
Principal actuanal assumptions {expressed as weighted averages) are:

2022 2021
Discourt rate 3.90% 150%
Consumer Price Index 2.40% 2.10%
Retall Price Index 2.90% 285%

The mortality assumptions used cre consistent with those recommended by the schemes’ actuaries and reflect the latest available
tables, adjusted for the experience of the scheme where appropriate. For 2022, the mortality tables used are 100% of the $3PMA (males)/
SIPFA_M (femoles) all lives tables, with birth year and 2021 CMI projections with a smoothing parameter of Sk = 7.0 and A = 0.5%, subject
to a long-term rate of improvernent of 1.5% for males and females and for 2021, the mortality tables used are 97% of the $S2NA tables, with
birth year and 2021 CMI projections with a smoothing parameter of Sk = 7.0 and A = 0%, subject to a long-term rote of improvement of
1.25% for males ond females.

Aggregated position of defined benefit schemes
The following takle shows the assumptions used for all schemes and illustrates the life expectancy of an average member retiring at
age 45 at the balance sheet date and a member reaching age 65 in 20 years’ time.

2022 2021
Years AT}
Retnng af batance sheet date gt age 65 Male 226 220
Female 24.4 244
Retinng at age 85 n 20 years' time Male 242 233
Femare 26.2 255
Duration of benefit obligations
2022 M2
Years VoLTs
Weignted average duration of the defined berefit cbligat ons 11.4 138
Weighted average duraticn of the defired benefit obigations,
excluding defined benefit obligatons packed by purchased annurt es 14.3 171

Sensitivity analysis
Measurement of the Group's defined benefit obligation 1s sensitive to changes in certain key assumptions. The sensitivity analysis below
shows how a reascnably possible increase or decrease in a particular assumption would, in isolation, result in an increase or decrease in
the present value of the definad benefit obligation as at 30 June 2022. We hove included additional sensitivity analysis, which excludes
the value of cur defined benefit obligations backed by purchased annuities, as the asset value is the deemed present value of
obligations, with ne movement to the overall scheme deficits, Given recent market volatility due to the impact of COVID-19 and the
conflict in Ukraine, we continue to use a sensitivity analysis of 0.5%.

frate of inflation

Discount rate Life axpectancy

Decrease Increase Dacrease Increase Dacrease hcrease

by 0.5% by 0.5% by 0.5% by 0.5% by 1year by 1year

£m £m £m £m £m £m

ncrease fdecrease) in present value of defined obl'gation 557 (54.0) 400) 395 1377} 377
Excud.ng purchasea annuity obligations

ncrease (decrease! ir present value of defred obligation 207 (201} (1499 14.7 (140 140

The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual change inthe defined benefit obligation, as it is unlikely that changes in
assumptions would occur in isolation from one another.

The sensitivities assume the funds’ assets remain unchanged. However, in practice changes in interest rates and inflation will also offect
the value of the funds’ assets. The funds’ investment strategy is 1o hold matching assets with values that move in line with the liabilities
of the fund, to protect against changes in interest rates and inflation.

This sensitivity analysis has been prepared using the same method cdopted when adjusting results of the latest funding valuation to the
balance sheet date. This is the same approach adopted in previous periods.

The history of experience adjustment is as follows:

2022 S H 2015 FIAT

£m H R e

Present value of ike defred nerefit ob 'gater 866.0 11064 11493 11795 10047
Far val.e of pan assets (936.3) (12472) (218250 (12011 11,1293
Restict recognt o1 of asset and ecogrition of add tiona has:ity 78.6 517 313 58 685
Deficit in the plans 83 112 81 24.2 33z
Experience adjustments arising o0 oar Fabilities (%) 21.0 21 18 45 27

Expererce ad,ustmenis arising cn olan assets (%) 193

24

16 25

10
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

We have a humber of share plans used to award shares to Directors and senior management as part of their remuneration. To record
the cost of these, a charge is recognised aver the vesting period in the Group Income Statement, based on the fair value of the award
on the date of grant.

Accounting policies

We recognise the fair value of share awards ond options granted as an employee expeanse, with a corresponding increase in equity.

We measure the fair value ot the grant date and spread it over the vesting pericd of each option. We use a binomial valuation model to
measure the fair value of options and a Black-Scholes valuation model to measure the fair value of share awards. We adjust the amount
we recognise as on expense, to reflect the estimated performance against non-market related conditions and the number of share
awards and options that actually vest at the end of the vesting period.

The Group recognised a total share-based payment expense of £3.7m (2021: £7.7m), including National Insurance contributions of £0.1m
(2021: £1.2m).

Share awards

> There were 560,511 conditional share awards outstanding ot 30 June 2022. These cenditional shares were awarded to Executive
Directors and senior management under the 2014 and 2019 Performance Share Plans. In accordance with the plan's terms,
participants have received a conditional annual aword of shares or nil cost option awards, which will normally vest after three years,
with the proportion of the award vesting depending on growth in the Group's adjusted eamings per share. Further details of the
plan's parformance conditions are given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

During the year ended 30 lune 2022

> 129991 cwards were granted on 15 September 2021, with an aggregate fair value of £7,213,000. The far value of services received
in return for share awards granted s based on the fair value of share awards granted, measured using a Black-Scholes valuation
model. At the date of grant, the fair value of a share awarded was £55.49, based on an expected dividend yield of 0.61%.

> 7827 awards in total were granted on 5 November 2021, 11 Fetrruary 2022, 18 March 2022, 1 June 2022 and 1C June 2022, with an
aggregate fair value of £231,000. The fair value of services recelved in return for share awards granted is based on the fair value of
share owards granted, measured using a Black-Scholes valuation model. At the date of grant, the aggregate fair value of a share
awarded was £29.48, based on an expected dividend yield of 1.05%.

Number of

awards

2022
Cutstanding at the start of year 665,522 770,690
Exercised dunng the year (205,010} (193401
Forfeited dunng the year {37,819} (103172}
Granted durnng the year 137,818 191,605
Outstanding at 30 June 560,511 &465 522
Exercisable at 30 June 17,605 2108

Bonus and restricted stock share awards

In addition to the outstanding share awards above, there were 61,313 bonus and restricted steck share awards cutstanding at 30 June
2022. The bonus sharaes were awarded to Executive Directors and senior management as part of the compulsory deferred benus, and
restricted stock share awards were granted to senior manogement in connection with recruitment. in accordance with the awards’
terms, participonts have received a conditional annual bonus award of shares or nil cost option awards, which will normally vest
between one and three years after award, providing the participant is employed by the Group at that time.

In the year ended 30 June 2022, 18,192 bopus share awards were granted on 15 September 2023, with an oggregate fair value of £1,009,000.

Numbar of ML ~bes of

awards QAHQ ity

2022 2621

Outstancing at the start of year 72,466 84081
Exercised during the year (29,3458] (32654
Forfeited duning the year - {1,324}
Granted dunng the year 18,192 22,383
Outstanding at 30 June 61,313 72,406

Exercisable gt 30 June
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED
Share options

On 12 August 2004, the Group established d share option programme that entitles key management and other senior employees to
purchase shares in the Company. Further grants on similar terms were offered to these employee groups as set out below. The terms and
conditions of the grants are as set aut below. All options are to be settled by physical delivery of shares and meet the criteria for being

trected as equity settled.

Eroes,oon et v Gt dote Momearf mstrno e 150 wiab g oo d Lo, Dt s exan Len Co ottt Tooof opTee
2004 Company share plan 7 September 20172 1891 Exercisable 1.33400p 13 vyeors
2004 Compary share clar 26 Sep F53% Sxercisable LA413.00p 10 years
Total share options 11,430
Share options
The number cnd weighted average exercise prices of share options are as fellows:
Weighted
average
QxQrCise Number of o
ptice aptions [T
2022 2022 Phsbll
Outstanding at the start of vear 1,331p 32,633 L173p
Forfeited durnng the year 1,374p (2,755} 9150
Share appreciation fights effected dunng the year 1312p (6,328} 105%p
Exercised during the year 1,265p (12,120) QB 19875}
Qutstanding at 30 June 1,400p 11,430 1331p 32633
Exercisable at 30 June 1.400P 11,430 1331 32633

The cptions at 30 June 2022 had a weighted average remaining contractual fe of 11 years (2021: 1.6 years). No share options were
granted during the: year (2021: nill. The weighted average share price at the date of exercise during the year was £44.18p (2021 £44.73p).

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Cailed up share capital is the number of shares in issue at their par value. A number of shares were 1ssued in the year, in relation the

employee share schemes

Accounting policies

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the amounts of the proceeds received, net of direct issuance costs

Own shares

We include the transactions, assets and habilities of the Group-sponsored Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust 'QUEST ) in the
Group Financial Statements. [n particular, the trust's purchases of the Company’s shares are deducted from shareholders’ funds until

they vest unconditionally with employees.

Share capital

2022 022 70
Number M- £m O
Issued and fully paid
Ordirary shares of 10 perce 65,773,620 45741500 5.6 46
There 15 no authonsed share capitai limit.
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive cividends, as declared from time to time.
The movement in share capital for the period was a3 follows:
2022 2022
Number LI £m
ssdes urder the Executive Share Ophicn Mar 12,120 13875 - -
issued 10 Employee 3ereft Trust - 650,000 - ol
12,120 569875 - [N
Shares issued under the Executive Share Option Plan were issued at option prices as follows:
2022 2022 2.2 220
Number Price r i3 Froc
Executive Share Option Plan - - 65599 722830
2,837 977.83p 2032 P7783p
7027 1334.00p 1738  133400p
2,256 1413.00p 2506 1413000
12,320 19875
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31, CAPITAL AND RESERVES CONTINUED
Reserve for own shares

The Cempany's shares are held by a QUEST, which is an employee benefit trust established to facititate the eperation of cur long-term
incentive scheme for senior management. The reserve amount represents the deduction in arriving at shareholders’ funds for the
consideration the trust paid for the Compuany's shares, which had not vested unconditionally at the balance sheet dote. The number

and market value of the ordinary shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust and the QUEST were:

2022 221 2022 2

Number N e ke Em <
Shares allocated but not vested 280,803 509249 71 252
Uncllocated shares 92,334 22334 23 44
373,137 601,603 .4 298

The shares have a nominal value of £37 314 (2021 £60,160).

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from translating the financicl statements of our foreign operations.

The Group uses foreign currency denominated berrowings of £32.3m (2021: £10.7m} as a hedge against the translation exposure on the
Group's net investment in overseas companies. Where the hedge is fully effective at hedging the variakility in the net assets of such

companies caused by changes in exchange rates, the changes in value of the borrowings are recognised in the Censolidated

Statement of Comprehensive income and accumulated in the hedging and translation reserves. The ineffective part of any change in

value caused by changes in exchange rates is recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments, net

of taxation.

Hedging and translation reserves

Hedging Translation

resaerva reserve

Em £m

Balance at 30 June 2020 0.2 265
Exchange differences on translation of overseas operations - [454)
LOSS recognised on net investment hedges - 04
Loss recognised on cash flow nedges - interast rate swaps 02 -
Income tox reiated 1o net losses racognised in other comprehensive income - 76
Balance at 30 June 2021 - (7
Exchonge differences on translation of overseos operations - 67.2
Gain recognised on net iInvestment hedges - (0.7)
Loss recognised on cash flow hedges - interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps 19 -
Income tax related to net losses recognised in other comprehensive income {0.5) (7.7)
Balance at 30 June 2022 1.4 509
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

32. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2022 204
£m [Ses
Profit for the year 36.7 L68

Adjustment for:

Net IAS 41 valuation movemrent on biologica assets
Amortisation of acguired intangible assets
Share-based payment expense

Shara of profit of joint ventures and associates
Finance costs (net}

income tax expense

Exceptional items

Adjusted operoting profit from contnuing operations
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of plart and equipment

Loss on disposal of intangible assets

Amortisation and mpairment of ntangible assets

Adjusted earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortsation
Cash impact of exceptionai items

Othar movements in oiological assets and haivested produce
Decrease In provisions and release n deferred consideration
Addwional pension contributions in excess of pension charge

Other

Operating cash flows before movement in working capital

Increase in inventories

Increase in receivables

ncredse N paydoies

Cash generated by ope ations

Interest receved

Interest and other firance costs paid

interest on leasea assets

Cash flow from dervatve financial instruments
Income taxes paid

Net cosh from operating activities

Analysis of net debt
Total changes in liabilities due to financing activities are as follows:

Other
AT Iy Ngt Foraign non-cash At 30 June
cash flows exchange movements 2012
P Em Em £m Em
Cash and cash equivalents [see note 22! 440 {11.0) 38 - 388
interest-beanng loans - current (see note 27) (139 8.9 (1.2} (0.9 (7.1)
Lease labiities - current isee note 28} 190] 113 0.7) 11.7) (10.1)
1226 20.2 (1.9) (12.8) (17.2)
Interesi-bearing loans — nor-current (s2e note 27) 11094} 63.1) (9:6) - (182.1)
Lease lgntties — non-curert (see note 28) 123 - (1.6} (3.6) (24.5)
{1287 63.1) {11.2) {3.6) (206.6)
Total debt financing (15161 {429} (13.1) (16.2) (223.8)
Net debt L0548 (53.9) 9.3) (16.2) (185.0)

Included within non-cash movements is £15.3m in relation to net new leases and £09m in the unwinding of debt issue costs
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32. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT CONTINUED

Olrer
At duly Forege ~on Loeh
2020 ex e

o oo £ i £
Cash and cash equivalents (see note 22) 413 46 {19 - 460
Interest-bearing loans — current (see note 27} @2 (4.4 04 (09} (13.9)
Lease habilities ~ current (see note 28) 1100} 117 0.2 (109} (20)
{(19.2) 73 08 (11.8) (229
Interast-bearing loans — nor-currert (see note 27 (103.6) (127 62 - (1094)
Legse liabilities - non-current (see note 28] (21.1) - 03 15 {123}
(124.7) (12.7) 72 15 {1287
Total debt financing (1439) {(54) 80 (103) {151.8)
Net debt {102.6) 1.2 6.1 (10 3) (105.6)

Included within non-cash movements is £2.4m in relation to net new leases and £E09m in the unwinding of debt issue costs.

33. OPERATING LEASES

Accounting policies
For short-term leases {those with a term of less than 12 months) and low-value items, we charge the rentals payable to the Inceme
Statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company has elected not to apply IFRS 16 to contracts where the right-of-use asset would be recognised as an intangible asset
(e.g. software licences).

Total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancallable operating leases which expire:

2022 2071

£m oo

In less than one year - 08
Batween one and five years - -
In maore than five years - -
- 08

34, CAPITAL AND QTHER COMMITMENTS

At 30 June 2022, outstanding contracted capital expenditure ameunted to £nil {2021: £1.2m related to the purchase of property, plant
and equipment).

35. CONTINGENCIES AND BANK GUARANTEES

Contingent liabilities are potential future cash outflows, where the likelihood of payments is considered more than remote but is not
considered probable or cannot be measured reliably. Assessing the ecmount of habilities that are not probable is highly judgemental.

The retirement banefit obligations referred to in note 29 include obligations relating to the MPF defined benefit scheme. Genus, together
with other participating employers, is joint and severally liable for the scheme's obligations. Genus has accounted for its section and its
share of any orphan assets and liabilities, collectively representing approximately 86% {2027: 86%) of the MPF. As a result of the joint and
several hability, Genus has a contingent liability for the scheme’s obligations that it has not accounted for. The total deficit of the MPF
from the most recent triennial valuation can be found in note 29.

The Group has widespread global operaticns and is consegquently o defendant in many legal, tax and customs proceedings incidental
to those operations. In addition, there are contingent liabilities arising in the nermal course of business in respect of indemnities,
warranties and guarantees. These centingent liabilities are not considered to be unusual in the context of the normal cperating
activities of the Group. Provisions have been recognised in accordance with the Group accounting policies where required. None of
these claims are expected to resuit in a matenal gain or loss to the Group.

As gescribed in note 7, the Group is involved in ongoing litigation proceedings and investigations with ST that are at various legal
stages. The Group makes a provision for amounts to the extent where an outflow of economic benefit is probable and can be reliably
estimated. However, there are specific claims identified in the litigation which the Group considers the outcome of the claim is not
probable and will not result in the outflow of economic benefit.

The Group's future tax charge and effective tax rate could be affected by factors such as countries reforming their tax legislation to
implement the OECD's BEPS recommendations and by European Commission initictives including state aid investigations, Further
information can be found innote 11

At 30 June 2022, we hod entered into bank guarantaes totalling £20.2m (2021: £191m).
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

36. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION
In accordance with 1AS 24 'Related Party Disclosures’, key management personnel are those having authority and responsibility for

plonning, directing and controling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly. Key maonagement personnel comprise the Directors
and the other members of GELT.

2022 J021

£&m e

Salanes and short-term employee benefits 4.9 80
Post-employment benefits Q.2 0.2
Share-based payment expense 1.2 4.1
6.3 123

Directors

Further details of Directors’ compensation are included in the Directors’ Remuneration Repart.

Other transactions with key management persennel
Other than remuneration, there were no tronsactions with key management personnel.

37. GROUP ENTITIES

In accordance with section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, a list of subsidiaries and joint ventures and associates as at 30 June 2022
is set out below. All subsidiary undertakings ore subsidiary undertakings of their immediate parent undertaking(s), unless otherwise

indicated.

Nature of business
Bovine

% of share
capital ’
Direct, votingrights
indirect held by
Country of Group Group
Name of undertaking Registered address incorporation interest Shara class companies
ABS [Beyng) International B1608, Lucky Tower, Easth 3id Ring Roaa, Cninag ndirect  No Par Value 100%
lade Co . Lid. Chaoyang Distnct, Bejing, 100027, Th na Common
Stoc«
ABS Argentina S A A Castellanos 1169, (3080) Esperanza Argenting Direct ARS1 Gronary 100%
Sunte Fe, Argantina
ABS Chile Limitada Avenda del Pargue #4781 office #5071 Huechuraba, Chilg Direct CLPL 100%
Santizge. Chile Common
Stoek
ABS Genet.cs Sauth Afics (Pty) Prestige Park Blocx B Urit No 5B, Pastorale Street, South Africa nchirect ZARL O-dinary 100%
L1 Durbanville Indusirial Park, Daroanaville, 7550
South Afrca
ABS Global [Canadal Ina 1525 Fioraaale Rood, Frrira O N38 271, Canada Canada nadirect CADL 100%
Ord nary
ABS Gloal tnc 1525 Jver Road, De Forest Wi 53532 United States Un'ted States Indirect UshooL 100%
Common
ABS aha S V-0 Bastida nr 6 oo Covatugozz 26020, taly Ind rect €1 Quota 200%
Cremona, 'taly
ABS Meéxico 3 A ce CY. Kangas Mo, 2022, Guintas Carmpeastre, 31214, Mexioo Cirect MYMN1O 100%
Chiruahaa Crib, Mexao Ciass 1
MXMN10
Cross 2
ABS PolskuSp z oo Szadrowa 224 82-300 Gronows Gorre, Polard Pola~c Indrect FLNL1OQO —00%
Crdirgry
Savec SAS 469 Chem r des Moligres, PA ¢l Craroenay §9210, Frarce rotirect €10 Crdnary 100%
Leruly. Frarce
Chitale Genus AZS llaan! Amar Nentuane, Ofice No 406 off Bansr Roac lalslle! ndrrect INR1DO 50%'
Pryate Limtea 5 hNeéd * 1 Milage Baner Tal Have, Pare Oronary
Mabarasntg irdio
De Navs Genetcs O 1284 Drole O ve, hew Allin 14 52140, Urined States U ted States ndrrect  he Par Valie 51%
LT oits
Genus AB8S INZ] L m.tea Geneate Accourang Grouo Lirmited, Leve 2,2 New Zeclana ndrect NZDL 0%
Curdanc!d Street. Eder Terrane Auckland, 1021 Ordinary
New Zeo'ard
Gearus ABS Colombia SAS Averiga Carrera 70, Mo 105 - 51 Bogota, Colombia Colomoiza Ing rect COR10000 130%
Crding-y
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37. GROUP ENTITIES CONTINUED

Nature of business

Bovine
% of share
capital/
Direct.’ voting rights
indirect hald by
Country of Group Group
Name of undertaking Registered ocddress incorporation interest Share class companies
Genus Australia Pty Ltd 15 Scholar dnve, Bundoora VIC 3063, Australia Australia Indirect AUD1.388 100%
Ordinary
Genus Breeding Incha Private Ath Floor 40:‘) Amrv Nrsm ine, Brmar Pune indic Ir\uwlc\.t INRL Oedinury
Lirnited MTOAS India
Genus Breed ng Limited Motrlx House, Basing V\ew Bosmgstoke Homp%hwp UK Drect £1 Ordinary lOO/o
(01192037) RGZ1 ADZ Umted Kquom
'Genus Ukru ne’ LLC P\dlwsno str 1KYV 03164, Umme Ukraine Indirect  No Par Value 100%
Comman
Stock
Im Witro Blcm\ Mecho 5. A Plazo Comemo\ Punto Co\onnes Boulevc‘rd Mecho Indirect MXNl 9%
de OV independencia #7446 intenor &, CF 27140, Cdade QOrdinary
Torreon - Estoflo Coohuxlo Mexuco
JBI Genetas LLC 130 North Kelsey Street Visoha CA 9320 United States |md|fect Na Par Value 100%
Unitect States Commaon
Stock
LLC Gefu,s ABS F?u5 Zhelezpodorozhr\avq Street Houqe 51, Le ter 7n, Russic ndirect RUBL 100%
Premses 2, 5000{;2 Tuia, Russian Federgtion Ord nory
Millwood Products Ltd Mctr X House Eosmq View, Boswngstoke Humps e, United Indirect £l Ord nary 100%
(086621017 RGZI 407, United ngdom ngdom
Pecplan ABS Imp. e Exp Ltda. Rod BFE OSO Km196 - ISOmetros Zom Rurol De\to Brazil Indrrect BRL1 Ordinary 100%
MG 38108 OOO Brcml
St Jucobs Animal Breedmg 1526 River Rood De Forest Wi 53532 United States Unitea States \nd\rect No Par Value 100%
Corp Common
Z1t9ry 3. Moxwmo Tmes 7189 Uruouoy Uruguay Indirect No Por Volqe 100%
Common
Nature of business
Parcine
% of share
Direct/ capital/vating
indirect rights hald by
Country of Group Group
Name of undertaking Registered oddress incorporation interest Share class companies
Agroceres PIC Genetico de Rua 1 JN, 1411, Sala 16 - Jardim Novo, Rio Claro 5P Brazil Indlirect BRL1 49%
Suinos Ltda - CEP, 13.502-74], Brctzd Ordinary
Agroceres PIC Suinos Ltda Ruo1 JN no 1411, Solc: ‘I? - Jordm Novo Rio C\oro SP Brozﬂ Indirect BRL1 45%'
— CEP,13.502-741, Brazl Crdinary
Aviscenter Mallevang A. S Moileve] 3, 6670 Holsfed Demmark Denmark nchirect DKK 1 49%'
Ordlnory
gENEET'C Serwue S, R L Vwo!e Europo 7> 32100 Bel\umo Ito\y Itaary ndact €’ Ordar\ory 33%'
\nner ‘Vbnoo\ a Haoxang P\g J mtcmg Y Hage Jincing Town th,on County, Ching indirect No Par Value 49%
Breed\r\g Co Lt Yar An Mumcipality, Shaanx Province, Shinag Common
Liao ng P\C Agr ._u\tum Gunzugou Village, Gao Gucm Town, Benx Courvty Ching Inchract CNY1 100%
Science and Technology Co.,  Beaxi City, Liaoning Province, China Ordimary
Ltci
P‘(‘ [bh() wthu\ Agrculture Room 702-5, No. 719 Shen Gui Road, China inarect  No Par Value 100%
Science und Technology Min Hang Distact, Shargha, China Cormmon
Company Limted
PIC onongmgong) qu Office 1210, Internatioral Finance Tower, Cning Indirect ushl 100%
Improvermrent Co | Lt 20 Jingang Road, Zhangjagang Bonded Zone, Ordinary
Zhonqmqong City, Jm:mgsu Provmce Chmo
PIC Andmo SpA Avernida del Parque #4161 office #éOl Huecnuzobq Chlle Indlrecr CLP1 100%
Sontuogo Ch\le Ordmory
2I1C Conada Ltd Borden Lodner Gervms LLP ‘?007520‘ 3rg Avenue Canadia Indirect capl 100%
SW. Calgary, Alberta T2P OR3, Canada Ordinary
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

37. GROUP ENTITIES CONTINUED

Nature of business

Porcine
% of share
Direct/ capital, voting
indirect rights held by
Country of Group Group
Name of undertaking Registered address incorporation interest Share class companies
Pic Frcmce SA 49 (“m:mm deQ MJlle &g, 6721 O Lent Ily, “rance Frarce Inclirect €l7 Ordmory 100%
PIC Genet\cs Deelqncted R-verswde Ome Slr Jorm Roqer an's Quc:\,a reland indirect €127 lOO/
Activity Company Dubhn 2 reland Qradinary
€127
Redeemable
preferance
SHO(DS
PJC Genel ics LLC 7‘? No'ndﬂy Y BouJeu arg f SDSDOO Be!garod Russia Indirect R’UBJ 100%
Russian Federanon Ordmary
Pig ‘mprovement COrr‘por*\ de \Ner‘(‘ey\m dc- |O Bﬂl’que'u N 7 COI \/\ |C}s dei Sur Mexico Inclirect '\10 Por Va'ue 100%
Mexico, S deR L deCV 76040 Queretaro. Queretare Mex.co Common
Stock
PJG lmpro»err:ent Campon} Jathostrale N, D-30%3 Hannover, Garmany Germary Indirect N Par Value 100%
Deutscnland GmibH Common
Stock
Fig Irnpr(,v@ment Compum\, C Pou Wila, 22 20 puerta é 081?1. :mt Cugot oe 3pan Indirect %,2: Orcmory 100%
Fspafia, 5.4 \/mles B:Jrce ona, C:p:]\n
Pig \Mprovempnt Compony [UE Nomx House Bc.fmg Vo, B(Jamqst'ﬂr@ *Lm snie JK Ind rect £O.10 100%
Lm\‘re_i 007" 630&1 RG21 QUZ United '<quor'1 Crdinary
PIC \tul»o Srl Strud(j 1<=| Loggi 22, 1}6155 Ponte Scm vaonm lraly Indrect €2 Ordinary B85%
Pe ugu ttaty
P\C Philippines \n(, Umt 2101-2103 :r]d 2203, Jo\ Ineeg P\oza F Ortlgoa Phll\ppmes [N ract PHP1O0 100%
J- Qd | Ortigas Center, Pasig Sty bOS Pt Mllppwnes Sradinary
PIC USA, Inc \OO B UPC:rGig Comrforwb Blva, Smte 2200, United States Indirect UsSD1 100%
Hendersonville, TN 37075, Um\e'j States Ordlnory
RenOvare Bosciences, Inc éS?A Co'rwon Ct, Co\umbﬂ MD 21044, Un ted States Unlted States Drect UsDOo0L 53%
Seres Seed
Preferred
Reproduore; EC, Ldu Av. Eng ._)\Jor.e PJcl“er A""ore\rg_, Torre 2 - MﬂA Por ugo\ \ndlrem No Dor Value 100%
1070-102 wshoa, Portugal Comrmon
Stock
Societa Agricola GENEETIC v‘lo Mmhe n 2 42122 Reggf)r L, \m\v lta'y ncirect €1 Ordinary 33%
5 R L
Sho\mxw D\’“ Pig Imprmpmemf 127 OS 2ist f\;or Vun mlelal Bu\\dmg '2 F@ﬂg Chbng China ndirec ’\JO Par VO ue 100%
Co. Ltd Second Strest. X-.an Econorrie Develepmert D-strct, Comrmon
Xar City, Shaarx pr:)“nce Cnna Stock
Yon ar Xinyongxong Jmtcmq \f\“qge _qur'Ju i Town Zh :jrw Co mty Yr]n An Cring nclirect NO Par VYaiue 49%’
Agricu ture Tecnrology Municipal ty, in Shadax Provinceg, China Common
Ca Ltd Stock
Nature of business
Other
% of share
Dirget ¢apital. voting
indirect tights held by
Country of Graup Group
Name of undertaking Registered address incerporation interost Share class companies
A,courmg & Managerial Kansas No 2028 Quintos Campestra, 31214, Mexico 'ndract MXNL Ciass 1 Q5%
Serveces S aeR L ue \Jv Chinuarua Chir Maxico
ABS Interratona., 11 152 -? ver Pcafj Do Forest Wi J35'<2 [S1aB ed Smtea Lrrted States nd rect 501 100%
Ord nary
ABS Pecplon Ltda Pmd BQ 050 K 194 - ‘SOrretros Zor\a RUO‘ ualta Brazl Crect Bal1 100%
e BSWB Q00 Brazl Ord rary
Agence Spillers NV DI:1 ] er m‘_aﬁ“be rld, |ZOO WV /Iuw~*aulr t- Lumber' Belawm norrect No Par value 100%

Belgu

comrror
Stock
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37. GROUP ENTITIES CONTINUED

Nature of business

Other
% of share
Direct/ capital,'vating
indirect rights held by
Country of Group Group
Name of undestaking Registered address incorperation interest Share class companies
Brozilign Holdings Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK indirect  £1 Ordinary 100%
(00479048) RGZ"\ 4DZ, Unitedt Kingdom
Brozih=n Propert\es L\r*mted Mumx House, Basing View, Bosmgstoke Hom DsnIe, UK Jirect F1 Ordinary 100%
RG?W aﬁ? Eero( ngdﬁm
Busby Participagées Ltda Av Leopo\dmo de Oliverra, 4 113 So\a 303 Centro Brazil Inclrect BRL1 100%
CEP. 38010-000, UBERABA-MG Ordinary
Cannavarno Purticipagbes Av. Lecpoldine de Clivera, 4113, Salg 303, Centro, Brazil Indirect BRL1 100%
Ltdo CEP 38010-000, UBERABA MG Crdinary
DoI\ o Exoqrtcxdoro Ltdo Av Lecoo\dmo de Ohvem 4113 Sulo 301 mef;bo Brazil Indirect BRL1 100%
Minas GerO\S CEP 38010 OOO Brazil Ordinary
Dolgety Per\swon T ust L\Tn‘red Motnx Houge Bosing \/\ew Bosmgs*oke Hompshlre UK nchirect  £1 Ordinary 10G%
RGZ ADZ Unlted Kquom
Fyfield (SM) Limited {01026475) Motnx House, Basing View, Boqumqs;*oke Hampshire, UK rdirect  £1 Ordinary 100%
RGZW ADZ Un ted ngdom
Fyfield Dormant Motr\x ‘-<ouse BOQIHQ View Bosmgstokﬂ Hompshure. UK Irdirect £1 Crdinary 100%
RG214DZ, United ngdom
Fyfield Holland BY Motr\x House, Bosing view, Bmmgstoke Hampshve. Ne‘[her\omds Indlirect NLG100 100%
RG21 407, United Kwngdom Ordmory
Fyfield relona Lmited Rwersude One 5 1 John Roqerson 3 Quoy Irelonc Indirect €1.25 A 100%
Dubhn 2, Irelanc Ordinary
€125'B
Ordmcry
Genus lnvestments Limitad Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampsnire, UK Cirect E Crdinary 100%
LOZOZSS]?) RGZW ADZ Umted K\ngdom
Genus ®ue5t Trusrees L\m|ted anx House 8(13|r\g View BOsmgstoke HGmDsmre UK Dlrect £1 Crdinary 100%
RGZ 1407, Urmed Krngdom
Genus R&D, Inc 525 aner Rood De Forest WI 53532 Umt@d Stctes United States Inclirect US$00L 100%
Common
Genus Trustees Limitad Matnx House, Bosing View, Basingstoke, Hampsh-re UK Direct El Crdinary 100%
RG}H aDZ Umted ngdom
GIL Finance Sarl 121 Avenue de \o Fowencer\e L = 15T, Luxembaurgy Luxembourg indirect IsDL 100%
Crdinary
PIC Do Brosid Emoreerdimentos Rua 1N, no 1411, Sala 13, Jardim Novo. Rio Ciare, Braazil Indirect BRLOOL 100%
e F’Ort\upagoee Ltda. Estado De 580 POuIO CEP B 502741, Brozit COrdinary
PIC Fyfield Lernited (OOOWO?}G) Matrux House, Basmg V|ew Bosmgstoke Hump‘;hmﬁ JK Indirect  £1 Crdinary 100%

Pig Improverment Company Momx House Bos N Vigw, Busmgstokg HomDsh\re £1 Crdinory

Overscx_m L\m ted (OO?TéSOA) RGIH QDZ Umted Klngdam

P|gt0 es le\ted (00723762) Motrux House Boswng Wiew, Bosmgstoke Hompsh\re UK Indrrect  E1 Crdinary 100%
RG21 ADZ Umted Kquom

Promar Internatonal Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Bomngatok&- Hampsh\re UK Drrect £1 Ordingry 100%

[OSOOASCEJ RG21 ADZ Umted ngdom

Skogluno POF'EJ(,IF_)UQOG‘% Lfdo Av Leopoldmo de Olivera, 411 3 Solo 303 Cemro Brazil Indrect BRELL 100%
CEP- 38010-000, UBERABA- MG Ordineey

Spillers Limited [0Q0240211° MO*rlx Hou;e Bosmg Vlew Bamngrtoke quosh\re UK Inchract £0.25 100%
RG21 407, United Kmaoom Ordl Gy

Spillers Overseas Lirmited Matrx House, Bosmq V|ew Basingstoke, qupsh\rﬂ UK Indirect EO 25 100%

[00069723) RG2140Z United ngc‘om Ordmc:ry

Sygen Inc 100 BlueGrass Commons B vd, Suite 2200 United States Indirect UsDi 100%
Hendersomvlte, TN 37075 Umted States Common

Sygen International Lirmited Mutrlx House Bosmq V|ew Bosmgstoke H”:mf)qhwe UK Direct £0.10 100%

103215874

RG21 aDZ Umted ngdom

RGZ1 402 United Kingdom

LK Indirect

Ordinary

100%
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

37. GROUP ENTITIES CONTNUED
Nature of business

Other
% of share
Direct, capital; voting
indirect rights held by
Country of Group Group
Name of undertaking Registered address Incorparation interest Share class companies
Sygen tnvestimentos Ltda Av Leopoldinoe de Qhvera, L1138 - Sala 203, Uberaba Brazil Inclrect 3RLO.63 100%
Miras Gerans, CEP 33010-000, Brazn Ordinary
Usicafé SA o Cabinet Mayor, avacats, Rue Jean-Gubnel Switzerland indirect CHF1.200 100%
Eynard &, 1205 Geneave Orainary
Xelect umiteq Horzon Hodse. Abbey Watk 5t Andrews, Fife, UK Indirect E3001 39%'
Scotland, K¥16 9LB Crdinary
1T Ausoc atoo eodorhas mgs moia TG o rtvaetuee e ests
Z oLk subs G os tae 1 Gdemte gl af tag and Faxermot o a te msoct o 4764 of Tz Zomnoan 03 01 2008

38. DEFERRED CONSIDERATION
Accounting policies

We recognise deferred consideration on the Balance Sheet when ¢ business combination contains a contractual clause that defers

a portion of the purchase price. When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospactively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments
are odjustments that arise from additional information cbtained during the 'mecsurermnent period’ (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

Subsequent contingent consideration fair value remeasurements that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments are

recognised in the income Statement,

Contingent deferred consideration is measured at for value and the valuation basis is Level 3 classification, where fair value techniques
use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable markat data.

Contingent
deferred Deferred

consideration consideratien Total

£m Em £m

Balance at 1 Juby 2020 36 51 8.7
Business combination 0e - 08
Zayment of consideration (201 {7 .7
Release of unutlised contingent congderaton C4) - (0.4}
Effect of movement in exchange rates (0.3 - 0.3
Balance a1 30 June 2021 17 D& 21
Busiress combination 0.1 0.2 0.3
Payment of consideration (0.6) {0.4) (1.0)
Trarsfar (0.81 0.8 -
=ffect of movement In exchange rates 01 - 0.1
Balance at 30 June 2022 0.5 1.0 1.5
Current - 0.8 0.8
Non-current 0.5 0.2 07
Balance at 30 June 2022 0.5 10 1.5
Curert 12 04 L6
Nor-current 05 - 05
Balarce at 20 June 2021 17 o8 21
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38. DEFERRED CONSIDERATION CONTINUED
The balance at 30 June 2022 relates to the following transactions:

Contingent
deferred Deferred
Fiscalyear of  consideration consideration Total
transaction £m £m £m
Dairy LLC {n‘a BoviSync) 2019 0.4 - 0.4
Sergal Gastic Ramadera, S.L. 2021 - 0.8 0.8
TAC. - Laboratorio de Reprodugdo Animal Lida 2022 - 0.2 0.2
Millwood Products Ltd 2022 0.1 - 01
Balance at 30 June 2022 05 1.0 15
Sergal Gestié Ramaderq, S.L.
The deferred consideration is based on sales to existing customers during the period 28 June 2021 to 28 June 2022
39. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
2p22 2071
£m B
Non-controling interest 0.7) 36
Put option over non-controling interest at Inception 5.7) i5.1)
Total non-controlling interest (6.4) (1.5]

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's subsidiaries thot has a material non-controlling interest is set out

below before intra-Group eliminaticns.

De Novo PIC Italia
Genetics LLC S.rl 2022
£m £m £m
Revenue 37 3.4 71
Expenses (12.6) (2.6) (15.2)
Total comprehensive lexpense) income for the year (8.9) 0.8 8.1)
Total comprehensive (expensel/income attnibutable to owners of the Company {4.5) 0.6 (3.9)
Total comprehensive lexpensal/income attriputable to the non-cantrelling ~terest {4.4) 0.2 (4.2)
Biological assets 15.2 - 15.2
Current assets 09 1.0 19
OCther neh-current gssets 0.8 23 3.1
Current inobidities {19.6) (1.8} (21.4)
Net (llabilities)/assets {2.7) 15 (1.2)
Equity attnibutable to owners of the Company is 1.3 0.5
Non-controlling interest 0.9 0.2 {7
Dividends of £0.1m were paid to non-contralling interests (2021: £0.2m).
O NG FIC It

Gonot os LLG Sr 2021
Revenue 34
Expenses (L]
Total comprehensive income for the year (15
Total comprenensive Income attributable to owners of the Company ©08)
Total comprenensive income attrbutable to the non-controlling interest 0.7) :
Biologtcal assets 158 - 158
Current gssets or 1.2 21
Other nen-current assets 08 18 26
Curre~t hapilities (11.5) (L4} (129
Net assets 40 16 74
Fquity attributable to owrers of the Company (2.6} {14} 140l
Non-contrelling interest 34 02 36

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

40, RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Boemaz, Inc. and Bogz Dairy, LLC, ore well-recognised breeders in the industry, and are related porties to the Group as these entities are
under the control of relatives of Nate Zwald, our ABS Dairy COO.

We transact with Bormnagz, Inc. and Bogz Dairy, LLC as part of our bull product development effort, under @ variety of contracts and
agreements. Payments in 2022 amountad to £1.3m (2021 £0.5m). As at 30 June 2022, the balance owing to these entities was £nil (2021
£nil). Ali amounts were settied in cash.

These related-party transactions were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.

During the year, as part of an international secondment agreement with @ member of GELT, Genus agreed to fund an amaunt of £0.4m
in respect of o parsonal taxction expenss. A tax refupd has been cloimed and cashis expected to be received in erly FY23, which will
be used 1o settle the outstanding amount in full.

41, POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

With effect from 246 August 2022, the Group and its lenders increased the Company's multi-currency RCF by £40m to £190m and the
USD RCF by USD25m to USDI50m, and extended the maturity date of the total facilities to 24 August 2025.
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PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

2022 5071
Note Em £
Non-current assets
mtangible assets C3 2.6 65
Pieperty, plant and eguipment C4 09 11
nvestmants in subsiciaries C5 345.5 1228
Other investments Cé 21 20
Other recevables c7 74.0 851
Derrvative ingncial asset C15 2.2 -
Deferred tax asset C8 29 21
6437.2 1996
Current assets
Other receivabtes C7 693 3792
Cash and cash equivalents 19 1
71.2 3805
Current lahilities
Current payables ce {65.0) (2228}
Droisions C11 {0.4) (0.3}
(65.4) [223.1)
Net current assets 58 1574
Total assets less current liabilities 443.0 3570
Non-current liabilities
Non-current payables C10 (183.3) (1111
Provisions Cli {0.3) (1)
{183.48) (111.2)
Net assets 259.4 7458
Equity
Called up share capital Clé 6.6 6.6
Share premum account 179.1 1791
Own shares (0.1} {01}
Retained earnings 735 &2
Hedging reserve Q.3 -
Total equity 259.4 2458

The Company recognised profit for the year of £31.3m (2021: £19.6m profit).

The Financial Statements were approved and cuthorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 September 2022

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors.

Stephen Wilson Alison Henriksen
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer

Coempany number: 02972325

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Shaore
Colied up premium Own Retained Hedging Total
share capital acecount shares earnings resgeve equity
£m £m Em £m £m £m
Balance at 1 July 2020 55 1791 01} 535 10.2) 2388
Fair value of movemnent on cash flow nedges, net of tax - - - - 0.2 Q2
Actuanat gair on retirement benefits obligations - - - 29 - 29
Movement on pension asset recognition restrnction - - - (27} - (2.7]
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 02 0.2 04
Total prefit for the financial year - - - 196 - 126
Total comprehensive income for the financial year - - - 128 0.2 200
Shares issued 01 - - - - 01
Divdends - - - (195} - (19.5)
Share-based payment expense, net of tox - - - &4 - o.b
Balance at 30 June 2021 66 1751 0.1} 602 - D458
Faic value of movement on casn flow heages, net of tax - - - - a3 0.3
Actuarial gain on retirermnent benefits obligatiors - - - 37 - 3.7
Movement on pension assel recagnit On rastriction - - - 3.7} - 3.7
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - 0.3 0.3
Total profit for the financiai year - - - 313 - 31.3
Total comprehensive income for the financial year - - - 313 0.3 316
Dividends paid - - - {205) - {209
Share-based paymert expense, net of tax - - - 29 - 29
Balance at 30 June 2022 X 1791 {0.1) 73.5 0.3 259.4

For information on dividends see note 13, cash flow hedges see note 26 and share-bosed payment expense see note 30.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

C1. ACCOUNTING INFORMATION AND POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The Parent Company Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reparting Standard 101 ‘Reduced
Disclosure Framework' {'FRS 107) and the Companies Act 2006 {the ‘Act’). FRS 101 sets out a reduced disclosure framework for a
‘qualifying entity’ as defined in the standard, which addresses the financial reporting requirements and disclosure exempticons in the
individual inancial statements of qualifying entities that otherwise apply the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements
of the Companies Act 2006. The Group Financial Statements hove also been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by the |ASB.

The Company Financial Statements have been prepared using the histoncal cost convention, as mogified by the revaluation of certain
financial assets and financial liabilities and in accordance with the Act. The Financial Statements have been prepared on o going
concern basis, as set out in note 2 of the Consolidated Financial Statements of Genus plc. The accounting polivies sel out below and
slated in the relevant notes have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these Financial Stoterments.

The Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under FRS 107 in relation to share-based payments, business
combinations, financial instruments, presentation of comparative information in respeact of certain assets, presentation of a cash flow
statement, standards issued not yet effective, impairment of assets and related-party transactions. Where required, equivalent
disciosures are given in the Consolidated Financial Statements of Genus ple.

As permitted by section 408 of the Act, the Company hos not presented its own Income Statement in this Annual Report.
The functional currency of the Company is Sterling.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Preparing company financial statements in conformity with FRS 101 requires mancgement to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the baiance sheet date and
the reported amounts of ravenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The
estimates and underlying assumgtions are reviewed on an angoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, orin the pericd of the revision and future periods, if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Management has not identified any critical accounting judgements or key sources of estimation uncertainty.

Significant accounting policies applied in the current reporting period that relate to the Financial Statements as a whole
This section sets out our significant accounting pelicies that relate to the Financial Statements as a whole. Where an accounting policy
is generally applicable to o specific note to the Financial Statements, the policy has been described in that note.

Other income and deferred income

The Company has entered into a strategic coliaboration with Beiling Capital Agribusiness 'BCA') under which BCA will establish and
fund a collaboration specific entity {BCA Future Bio-Tech'}) which will use Genus's intellectual property and know-how to pursue the
PRRSv resistance regulatory and development work in China. Genus wili receive consideration after meeting certain milestones in the
development programme.

Each milestone is censidered to be either o separate performance obligation, or a set of groups of separate performance obligations,
under this agreement and are unbundled in the contractual arrangement as if they are distinct from one another.

We assess each separate performance obligation relating to the milestana payments, and upon completion of those performance
obligations recognise the fair value of amounts earned in other income. Some performance obligations, such as the transfer of
know-how, are recognised at @ point in time whereas others, such as the provision of technical services, are recognised over time.
We recognise any received but unearned consideration as deferred income.

We will apply the same accounting policy to any other comparable cgreements.

Pensions

A number of our employees are members of defined contribution pension schemes. We charge contributions to prefit and loss as they
become payable under the schermes' rules. We show differences between the contributions payable and the amounts actually paid as
either accruals or prepayments in the Balance Sheet. The schemes’ assets are held separately from those of the Company.

Certan former employees of the Company are members of one of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes, details of which are
given in note 29 to the Group Financial Statements. The schemes are all multi-employer defined tenefit schemes, whose assets and
liabilities are held independently from the Group but within their sponscred Group company.

Taxation
We provide for current tax, ncluding UK corporation tax and foreign tax, at the amounts we expect to pay or recover, using the tax rates
and the lows enacted or substantively enacted ot the balance sheet date.

Foreign currencies

We record transactions in foreign currencies at the rate ruling at the transaction date. We retranslate monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the prevailing rate of exchange at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the
Income Statement.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

C1. ACCOUNTING INFORMATICON AND POQLICIES CONTINUED

Own shares
The Company has odepted FRS 101, which requires us to recognise the assets and liabilities associoted with the Company’s investment
in its own shares in the Company’s Financial Statements, where there is de facto control of the assets and liabilities.

The Company's own shares held by a Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust remaoin deducted from shareholders’ funds until they
vest unconditionally with employees.

Employee share schemes
The Company's Executive Directors and Chief Operating Officers receive part of their remuneration in the form of share awards, which
vest upon meeting perfarmance criteria over a three-year period.

We measure the cost of these awards by reference to the shares’ fair value at the award date. At the end of each financial reporting
period, we estimate the extent to which the performance criteria will be met at the end of three years and record an apprapriate charge
in the profit and loss account, together with a corresponding credit to profit and loss reserves. Changes in estimates of the number of
shares vesting may result in charges or credits to the profit and loss account in subseguent periods.

Share-based payments

We have implemented the generally accepted accounting principle for accounting for shore-based payments with subsidiary
undertakings under FRS 101, whereby the Company has gronted rights to its shares to employees of its subsidiary undertakings under
an equity-settled arrangement, and the subsidiaries have not reimbursed the Company for these rghts. Under this arrangement, the
Company treats the share-based payment recognised in the subsidiary's financial statements s a cost of investment in the subsidiary
and credits equity with an equal amount,

Derivative financial instruments and hedging
Our activities expose us primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.

We use interest rate swaps to hedge interest rate risk. We clse use forward foreign cunrency contracts, implemented through a medium-
term US Dollar cross-currency borrowing and related interest rate swap, t¢ hedge expaesure to translation risk associated with US Dollar
net asseats of subsidiaries. Forward foreign currency contracts do not qualify for hedge accounting in the Parent Company Financial
Statements, as the hedged item is not in its Balance Sheet.

Our use of inancial derivative instruments is governed by the Group's policies, which are approved by the Board of Directors. The notes
to the Group Financial Statements include information about the Group's financial risks and their management, and its use of financial
instruments and their impact on the Group's risk profile, performance and financial condition.

The fair value of the US Dollar and interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that we wolld receive or pay to terminate the swap at
the balance sheet date, toking inte account current interest rates and the creditworthiness of the swap counterpartias.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is their quoted market price at the balance sheet date, which is the present value of the
quoted forward price.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the foir volue of derivatives and other qualifying hedging imstruments that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in Other Comprenensive Income ond accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging
reserve, and limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item from inception of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the iIncome Statement, and is included in the "other gains and losses’ line item.

Armounts previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income ond accumulated in equity are reclassified to the Income Statement in
the periods when the hedged item affects the Income Statement, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the
hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously
recognised in Other Comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are removed from eguity and included in the initial
measurement of the cost of the non-fnancial asset or non-Anancial liability. This tronsfer does not affect Other Comprehensive Income
Furthermore, if the Company expects that some or all of the loss accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve will not be recovered in
the future, that amount is immediately reclassified to the income Statament.

The Company discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationship {or a part thereof] ceases to meet the qualifying
criteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised.
The discontinuation is accounted for prospectively. Any gain or loss recognmsed in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in
cash flow bedge reserve at thot time remains in equity ondg is reciassified to the income Statement when the forecast transaction
occurs. When o forecast transaction is no longer expected to eccur, the gain or loss accurmulated in the cash flow hedge reserve is
rectassified immediately to the Income Statement

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Company agrees to exchange the difference between fixed ond foating rate interest amounts
calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts enable the Company to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on
the fair value of issued fixed-rate debt held and the cash flow exposures on the issued vanable-rate debt held. The fair value of interest
rate swaps at the reportng date is determined by discounting the future cash flows using the yield curves ot the reporting date and the
credit sk inherent in the contract. The average interest rate is based on the outstanding balonces ot the end of the inancial year.
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C1. ACCOUNTING INFORMATION AND POLICIES CONTINUED

As the critical terms of the interest rate swap contracts and their corresponding hedged items are the same, the Company performs

a qualitotive assessment of effectiveness and it is expected thot the value of the interest rate swap contracts and the volue of the
corresponding hedged items will systematically change in opposite directions, in response to movements in the underlying interest rates.
The main source of hedge ineffectiveness in these hedge retationships is the effect of the counterparty and the Company’s own credit
risk on the fair value of the interest rate swap contracts, which is not reflected in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the
change in interest rates. No other sources of ineffectiveness emerged from these hedging relationships.

C2. EMPLOYEES
Staff costs including Directors' remuneration during the year amounted to:

2022 Pory
£m Dem
Wages and saiarnes 2.0 77
Sociol security costs 11 14
Pension costs 0.2 0.2
Share-based payment expense 1.4 28
117 121

The Directors’ Remuneration Report sets cut details of the Directors’ remuneration, pensions and share options.

The average monthly number of employees including Directors during the year was as follows:

2022 2621
Number Nu™ber
Administration L4 40

C3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Accounting policies

Patents, licences and software are stated at acguisition cost less accumulated amortisotion. The amortisation period is determined by
reference to expected useful life, which is reviewed at least annually. Amortisation is charged to the Income Statement on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pottern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates.

See note 15 for useful economic life. We do not amortise assets under construction.
Patents and Assetsunder

Software licences construction Total
£m £Em £m Em

Cost
Balance at 1 Juty 2020 46 37 17 100
Additions - - 23 23
Transfers 29 - (2 -
Disposdis (04} - - (e¥A}
Balance at 30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021 71 37 11 119
Additions - - 39 39
Transfers 23 - {2.3) -
Balance at 30 June 2022 Q.4 37 27 158
Amortisation
Balance at 1 July 2020 16 37 - 53
Amortisation for the year 05 - - 05
Disposals (0.4) - - (04)
Balance at 30 June 2021 ana 1 July 2021 17 37 - 54
Amortisation for the year 0.8 - - 0.8
Balance at 30 June 2022 25 37 - 6.2
Carrying cmounts
At 30 June 2022 69 - 27 9.6
At 30 June 2021 54 - 11 &5
At 30 June 2020 30 - 1.7 4.7

Included within the softwore class of assets is £69m (2021 £5.4m) and included in assets in the course of construction is £2.7m (2021
£1.1m) that relate to the ongoing development costs of GenusCne, our single global enterprise system.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

C4&. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EGUIPMENT

Accounting policies

We state property, plant and eguipment at cost, together with any incidental acquisition expenses, or at their latest valuation, less
depreciation and any provision for impairment. We calculate depreciation on o straight-line basis, to write the assets down to their
estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives, The rates of annual depreciation on tangible fixed assets are as follows:
> Leasehold improvements period of lease

> Leased buildings pericd of leass

> Equipment 3 to 10 years

We review the carrying value of fixed assets for imparrment, if events or changes in circumnstances indicate that the carrying value may
not be recoverable.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured intially ot cost based on the value of the associated lease liability, adjusted for any payments made
before inception, initial direct costs and an estimate of the dismantling, removal and restoration costs required in the terms of the lease.
Subsequent to initial recognition, we record an interest charge in respect of the lease liability. The related right-of-use asset is
depreciated over tha term of the lease or, if shorter, the useful economic life [UEL) of the leased asset. The lease term shall inciude the
period of an extension option where it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised. Where the lease contains a purchase
optian, the asset is written-off over the useful lfe of the asset when it is reasonably certain that the purchase option will be exercised.

i Right-of-use
Leasehold i Owned leased
. improvements Equipment assets buildings Total
‘J £m £m Em £m £m
Cost ' j
Balance at 1 July 2021 : 05 0.4 0% 10 12
Disposals : - 0.1} [0.1) - {0.1)
Balance at 30 June 2022 05 0.3 0.8 1.0 1.8
Depreciation I
Balance at 1 July 2021 a3 3.3 0.6 02 08
Sepreciation for the year . - - - 0.1 Q.1
Balance at 30 June 2022 ' 03 0.3 0.6 0.3 09
Carrying amounts i )
At 30 June 2022 ! 0.2 ~ | 0.2 07 09
At 30 June 2021 a2 0.1 03 08 11

C5, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Accounting policies
Shares in subsidiary undertakings are stated art cost less any provision for impairment,

The Company assesses investments for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an
investment may not be recoverable. If any such indication of impoirment exists, then we estimate the recoveralble amount. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the value of the investment, it is considered to be impaired and we write it
down to its recovercgble amount. Animpairment loss is recognised immediately in the profit ond loss account.

Sharesin
subsidiary
undertakings
£m
Cost
Balance at 1 Juy 2021 3180
Additions 227.6
Balance at 30 June 2022 543.6
Provision for impairment
Bolence at 1 July 2021 1932
Proviaed duning the year 4.9
Balance at 30 June 2022 198.1
Carrying amounts
At 30 June 2022 345.5
Az 30 June 2021 1228

Additions relote to increasing our investment in ABS Pecplan Ltda, ABS Chile Limitoda, ABS Argentina 5.A. and Genus Investments Linuted.
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C5. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES CONTINUED

On 30 Jupe 2022, Genus plc subscribed for 220,000,000 ordinary shares of £1.00 each in Genus Investments Limited. The total cash
consideration of £220m owing from the subscription was offset against the loan payable by Genus Investments Limited to Genus plc
under a deed of offset approved by the Board on 30 June 2022,

The Company considers the relationship between its market capitalisation and the carrying value of its investments, among other
factors, when reviewing for indicators of impairment. As at 30 June 2022, the net investment in five of the Company’s subsidiary
undertakings exceeded the Company's share of the net assets. Each of these subsidiaries are denominated in Latin American
currencies, all of which have seen significant weakening against Sterling during the year ended 30 June 2022. For each of these
undertakings, the recoverable value has been estimated using the Board-approved Strategic Plan. There were no indicators of
impairment for the Company's other subsidiary undertakings.

The key assumptions for the value in use calculation are those regarding the discount rate, growth rates and expected trading performance.

Management estimates discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of monay and the risks specific to the
Group. The pre-tax discount rates are derived from the Group's post-tax weighted average cost of capital { WACC'), which has been
calculated using the caprital asset pricing model, the inputs of which include a country nsk-free rate, equity risk premium, Group size
premium and a risk adjustment [beta), this equates to a pre-tax discount rate of 11% (2021: 11%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using a long-term growth rate of 2.5% (2021: 2.5%).

During the year, £4.9m was provided against the investment held in Sygen Internotional Ltd to reflect a reduction in the net assets of
that company.

Principal subsidiary undertakings
The Company's principal subsidiaries and their main activities are given in note 37 1o the Group Financial Statements.

C6, OTHER INVESTMENTS

Accounting policies
Listed eguity investments are stated at fair value.

2022 2021
£m [re
Listed investment — NMR 21 20

NMR ordinary shares were acquired as part of the NMR pension agreement, and are measured at fair vaiue. The valuation basis is Level 1
classification, where fair value techniques are quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

C7. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Accounting policies
We state other receivables at their amortised cost less any impairment losses.

2022 2221
MNote £m £

Amounts due within one year
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 61.8 /L5
Corparation tax recoverable 1.6 0%
Prepayments 2.0 16
Other receivables 20 :
Deferred toxation ca 0% 2.1
Derivative financial asset C15 1.0 01
&9.3 3792

Amounts due after one year

Amounts owed by Group undertakings 74.0 65.1
74.0 451

At the balance sheet date, the total amounts owed by Group undertakings were £135.8m (2021: £439.6m). The carrying amount of these
assets approximates their fair value, Of the amounts owed by Group undertakings, £133.5m (2021: £3291m) is interest-bearing and any
interest charged is at current market rates. See note C5 for more detail on the decrease in amounts owed by Group undertakings.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

C8. DEFERRED TAXATION

Accounting policies

We recognise deferred taxation in respect of all timing differences that have criginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date,
where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in future or a right to pay less taxin future have cccurred ot the
bolance sheet date.

We only recognise deferred taxation assets if we consider it more tkely than not that we will have suitable profits from which we can deduct
the future reversal of the underlying timing differences. Timing differences are differences arising between the Company's taxable profits
and its results as stated in the Financial Statements, and which are capable of reversing in one or more subseguent periods.

We only recognise deferred taxation in respect of the future remittance of retained earnings of overseas subsidiaries to the extent that,
at the balance sheet date, dividends have been accrued as receivable.

We measure deferred taxation on a non-discounted basis, at the tax rates we expect to apply in the periods in which we expect the
timing differences to reverse, based on tax rates and lows enacted or substantively enocted at the balance sheet dote.

2022 307
£m Do
Deferred tax asset due within one year 0.9 21
Deferred tax asset que after more thaon one yaar 29 21
38 4.2
The movements in deferred taxation are as follows:
2022 o
£m i
At the start of the year 4.2 20
Recognised in the Income Statement 0.6 21
Recognised in eguity (1.0) ol
At the end of the year 3.8 4.2
The amounts provicled are as follows:
2022 .21
£m e
Share-based paymenrt expense 11 18
Othar eung differences 1.6 20
Losses 11 Q4
3.8 4.2

At the balance sheet date, the Company had unused tax losses available for offset against future profits, with a potential tax benefit of
£11m (2027 EC.4m). We have recognised a deferred tax asset in respect of this benefit, os we expect these losses to be offset against
future profits of the UK tax group in the near term.

C9. CURRENT PAYABLES

Accounting policies
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at ther nominal value.

2022 i

N e Em L

Bank loans and overdrafts 12 7.1 130
Trade payables 17 15
Otner payables 0.7 01
Armounts owed to Group undertck ngs 519 2042
Accruals 2.5 35
Detarrad Nncome 0.1 0.1
Coligatons urder eases C13 0.1 01
Dervative financ al i ablites Z1% 09 -
65.0 2228

Included within amounts owed to Group undertakings are amounts of £26.2m (2021 £176.6m) which are unsecured, repayable on
demand and any interest charged 15 at current market rates.

There are no outstanding contributions due to defined contribution pension schemes for the benefit of the employees (2021 £nil).
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C10. NON-CURRENT PAYABLES

2022 23721
MNete £m s
Bank loans and overdrafts ciz 1821 1094
Obhgations under leases C13 0.5 0é
Desivative financial liakiities . C15 0.3 -
Deferred income 0.4 11
1833 1111

C11. PROVISIONS
2022 2021
£m Con
Provisions due within one year 0.4 03
Provisions after more tnon one year 03 01
0.7 04

The provisions primarily consist of a share forfeiture provision of £0.5m, which relates to potential claims that could be made by untraced
members over a period of three years, relating to the resale proceeds of shares that were identified duning prior years as being forfeited
{(see note 25).

C12. LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Accounting policies
We initially state debt at the amount of the net proceeds, after deducting issue costs. The carrying amount is increased by the finance
costinrespect of the accounting period and reduced by payments made in the period.

We charge the finance costs of debt to the profit and loss account over the debt term, at a constant rate on the carrying value of the debt
ta which they relate.

2022 £021
£m o

Loans and borrowings comprise amounts falling due:
In one yedr or less or on demand 8.0 138
In more than one year but not more than two years - -
In more than two years cut not more than Aive years 1823 1092

190.3 1237
Less: unamortised Issue Costs (W3] (13

189.2 1224
Amounts falling due within one year (7.1) 1130
Amounts falling due after more than one year 182.1 1094

At the balance sheet date, the Company's credit facilities comprised a £150m multi-currency revolving credit facility 'RCF), a USD125
million RCF and a USD20 million bond and guarantee facility. The original term of the facility was for three years to 24 August 2023 with
the option to extend the maturity date by o further year before each of the first and second anniversaries of the signing date. The
Company's credit facility aiso includes an uncommitted £100m accordion option, which can be requested on a maximum of three
occasions over the lifetime of the facility to fund the Group's business development plans. On 24 August 2021, the Company and its
lenders extended the facility by a further year 1o 24 August 2024,

With effect from 26 August 2022, the Group and its lenders increased the Company's multi-currency RCF by £40m to £190m and the
USD RCF by USE25m to USD150m, and extended the maturity date of the total facilities to 24 August 2025.

As part of its interest rote hedging strategy, the Company has entered into interest rate swaps to hedge variable interest rates. At the
balance sheet date, bank loan and overdrafts include borrowings of USD45m fixed at 3.3175%, and Lorrowings of USL28m, swapped via
a cross currency swap into EUR25m, fixed at 0.3625%, excluding applicable bank margins.

Terms and debt repayment schedule
The terms andg conditicns of cutstanding loans and overdrafts were as follows:

2022 s21

Tunmney Intgret ate £m

RCF and overdraft GBP 26% 959 42.3
RCF, term loan and overdraft UsD 30% 773 527
RCF and overdraft EUR 1.4% 10.8 10.7
Qthear unsecured bank borrowings Other 2.2% 5.2 Q7
Total interest-bearing liabilities 189.2 1224

The above RCFs are unsecured.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

C13. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASES
Alease is a commitment to make a payment in the future, primarily in relation to property, plant and machinery and motor vehicles.

Acceounting policies
In accordance with IFRS 16, we recognise as an exgense any payments made in respect of short-term leases {those with o term of less
than 12 months) and fer low-value items on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.

For all other leases we recognise o habkility at the date at which the leased asset is made available for use, and @ corresponding
right-of-use asset is recognised and depreciated over the term of the lease (see note C4l.

Lease ligbifities are measured at the present value of the future fease payments, excluding any payments reiating to non-fease
components. Future iease payments include fixed payments, in-substance fixed payments, and variable lease payments that are
based on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable. Lease liabilities also take into occount amounts payable under
residual value guarantees and paymaeants to exercise cptions, ta the extent that it is reasonably certain that such payments will
be made. The payments are discounted at the rate implicit in the lease or, where that cannat be measured, at an incremental
barrowing rate.

We remeasure the lease liability {and make a corresponding adjustrment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

> Thelegse term has changed or there is & change in the assessment of the exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease poyments using a revised discount rate.

> Thelease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaronteed residual
valug, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate
{unless the lease payments change is due to o change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

> Alease contract is modified, and the lease modification is not accountad for as o separate lease, in which case the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

The Company did not make any such adjustments during the pericds presented.

The changes in the lease liakilities are as follows:

2022 EN|

£m 2
Balance at the start of the year 0.8 09
Payments maace (0.2) 0.1
Balance at the end of the year 0.6 08

In accordance with the reduced disclosure exemptions included in FRS 101, a maturity analysis has not been presented. The maturity
analysis of the Group's lease obligations is included in note 28 to the Group Financial Statements.

Cl4. OPERATING LEASES

Accounting policies
For shart-terrm leases {those with a term of less than 12 months) and low-value items, we charge the rentals payable to the Income
Statement on o straight-line basis over the lease term,

The Company has elected not to apply IFRS 16 to contracts where the right-of-use asset would be recogrised as an intongible asset
{e.g. software licences).

Total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which expire:

2022 7021
£m e
In less thar ope yeo! - nga
- o8
Qperating lease rentals charged in the year:
2022 el
Em c -
Ciner 0.8 08

C15. DERIVATIVES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Additional disclosures on financiol instruments can be found 1N note 26 to the Group Financial Statements.
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C16. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital

2022 2041 2022 2021
Number TP ol £m £
Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 10 pence 65,773,620 65,761,500 6.6 &6
There is no authorised share caprital limit.
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends, as declared from time to time.
The movement in share capital for the period was os follows:
2022 20m 2022 2521
Number MNures £m Bl
ssued under the Executive Shgre Option Plan 12,120 19875 - -
ssued to Employee Berefit Tryst - 650,000 - 01
12120 669,875 - 01
Shares issued under the Executive Share Option Pian were issued at option prices as follows:
2022 Pl
Numbar Price Nuroer Proo
Executive Share Opticen Plan - - 5599 72983p
2837 97783p 2032 Q77830
7027 1334.00p 1,738 1334000
2,256 1413.00p 2506 1413000
12,120 19875

Reserve for own shares

The Company's shares are held by @ QUEST, which is an employee benefit trust established to facilitate the operation of our long-term
incentive scheme for senior management. The reserve amount represents the deduction in arriving at shareholders’ funds far the
consideration the trust poid for the Company’s shares, which had not vested uncanditionally at the balance sheet date. The number

and market value of the ordinary shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust and the QUEST were:

2022 2 2022 2021

Number Nu=zer Em L

Shares allocated but not vested 280,803 509249 7.1 252
Unallocated shares 92,334 F2.334 23 L&
373,137 501,603 .45 298

The shares have a nominal valye of £37,314 (2021: £60,160).

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments net

of taxation — see note 26,

C17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company is exempt undet FRS 101 from disclosing transactions with other members of the Group.

C18. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
At 30 June 2022, outstanding contracted capital expenditure amounted to £nil (2021 £nill.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

C19. PENSIONS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENCIES

The NMR pension assigned to Genus plc under the Flexible Apportionment Agreement, recorded an actuarial gain of £3.7m, which has
increased the asset restriction made in previous years. As the Company does not have unilateral right to this surplus, as reguired in
accordance with IFRIC 14 it is restricted to £nil. For additional information on the MPF pension scheme, of which NMR was one of the
participating employers, please see note 29.

The retirement benefit obiigations referred to in note 29 to the Group Financial Statements include obligations relating to the MPF
defined benefit scheme. Genus, together with other participating employers, is joint and severally liable for the scheme's obligations.
Genus has accounted for its section and its share of any orphan assets and labilities, collectively representing approximately 86% (2021:
86%) of the MPFE. As ¢ result of the joint and several liability, Genus has a contingent liability for the scheme’s obligations that it has not
accounted for. The total deficit of the MPF scheme from the most recent triennial valuation can be found in note 29.

Certain UK subsidiaries, which are detailed in note 37 to the Group Financial Statements, will take advantage of the qudit exemption set
out within section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006 for the year ended 30 June 2022. The Company has given a statutory guarantee
over all of the liabilities held by those UK subsidiaries for the year ended 30 June 2022. The Company has assessed the probability of
loss under the guarantee as remote.

At 30 June 2022, the Company had entered into bank guarantees totalling £15.8m (2021: £13.9m).

C20. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

With effect from 26 August 2022, the Group and its lenders increased the Company’s multi-currency RCF by £40m to £190m and the
USD RCF by USD25m to USD150m, and extended the matunty date of the total facilities to 24 August 2025.
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FIVE-YEAR RECORD — CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

The infermation included in the five-year record below is in accordance with IFRS as adopted for use under the Companias Act 2006,

2022 2021 2070 2019 2018
Financial results Em £ et [ el
Revenue from continuing operations 593.4 5743 5514 4885 4703
Adjusted operating profit from continuing operations &8.8 765 601 518 555
Adjusted aperating profit including joint ventures and associates! 717 898 708 590 09
Adjusted profit befare tax 71.5 848 458 55.1 563
Basic adjusted earnings per share 82.7p 100%p 773p 53.8p 7230
Diluted adjusted carnings por share 82.3p 1001p 16570 5170 7130
Operating profit from continuing operations &%.4 477 424 2.8 60
Profit before tax from caontinuing operations 48.4 558 463 40 56
Profit after tax from continuing operations 346.7 483 357 08 R4
Net profit attributable to owners of the Compony 409 473 353 19 L5
Basic earnings per share 62.5p 726p S54.40 30p &6.1p
Diluted earnings per share 62.2p 720p 54.0p 259p 652p
Net gssets 5721 LS4 4945 4790 4017
Net debt 185.0 1056 1026 7?8 1085
1 Adustoo ooarat nog ot g, waftt o SUC ang O IO o ings Lar sare G befor 2 fer 1AS AT vl 3t 30 MoV e mIonT 27 00 OG0 gkl

Dot satan of acaurad iang b

CMse OxCOTtomT temis ana ctrer o s nrd 05365
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The Group tracks a number of
APMs in managing its business, which
are not defined or specified under the

requirements of IFRS beca
exclude amounts that are

or include amounts that are excluded
from, the most directly comparable
measure calculated and prasented in
accordance with IFRS, ar are calculated
using financial measures that are not

calculated in accordance

Alternative Performance
Measures
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ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES GLOSSARY

The Group believes that these APMs, which
are not considered to be o substitute
for or superior to IFRS measures, provide
stakeholders with additional helpful
information on the performance of the
business. These APMs are consistent
with how the business performance

is planned and reported within the
internal management reporting to

the Board and GELT. Some of these
APMs are also used for the purpose

of setting remuneration targets.

use they
includedin,

with IFRS.

These APMs should be viewed as
supplementol 1o, but not as a substitute
for, measures presented in the
consolidated financial information relating
to the Group, which are prepared in
accordance with IFRS. The Group believes
that these APMs are useful indicators of its
performance. However, they may not be
comparable to similary-titled measures
reported by other companies, due 1o
differences in the way they are calculated.

The key APMs that the Group uses include:

Calcuiation methociology and closest equivalent IFRS measure
{where applicable)

Reasons why we believe the
APMs are useful

Adjusted operating profit
exc JVs

Adjusted operating profit 1s operating profit with the net 1AS 41
valuaton movement on biolegical assets, amortisat:or of
acquired intangible assets, share-based payment exoense
and exceptional tems added back and excludes JV ano
associate esults

Closest equivalent IFRS measure: Operating profit

See reconciliation on page 193

Allows the comparnison of underlying
fincrcial performance by excluding
the mpacts of exceptional items and
-5 a perfornance indicator against

Adjusted operating profit
inc JVs

Includ'ng adjustea operating praft from VvV and associate results

See reconciliation ¢n page 193,

Adjusted operating profit
inc JVs exc gene editing
costs

Irclading odjusted operating proit from BV and associate results
but excluding gene editing costs

See reconclliation an page 193,

Adjusted operating profit
inc JVs after tax

Adjusted operating profit including JV less cdjusted efective tox,

See reconcilatior o1 oage 193

Adjusted profitinc JVs
before tax

Adjusted operating profit includ'ng JVs less ret finance costs.

See reconcihiation or page 193,

Adjusted profit inc JVs
after tax

Adusted profitincludirg JVs nefore tax less adiusted
effective tox.

See recancihation or poge 193,

which snort-term and long-term
ncentive cutcomes for our senior
executives are measured

>

>

ret I1AS 41 valuation movements an
biclogical assets ~ thase
meyerents can be matenaly
volatl'le and do not directly
carragiate to the underlying tradng
performance in the period.
Furthaermore, the moverment 1s
non-cash reloted and many
assumptions used in the valuation
model are oased on projections
rether tTnan current trad ng;

amort sat'en of acquirec ‘Ntangible
assets - excluding this imoroves the
comparability betweer acquired
and orgaricalyy grown operations,
as the aller Ccannot recogrise
nternally generatec rtangible
assets, Adjusting for amortisation
provides a more consistent basis for
compar son betweean the two,
share-based payments - this
expense 1 considered ta be
relatively volatle and not fully
reflective of the current ocenod

trad ng, as the performarce criteria
are based on E2S performance
over a three-yecr period and
nclade estimates of future
performance, ard

exceptanal items - these are ters
wh ch due 1o eithar their s ze o their
roture ore excluaed, to mprove tne
understaraing af tne Groun's
underlyng pe~ormnancs

Adjusted effective tax
rate

Total inceme 1ax charge for the Group excluding the Tax moact
of adjusting items, arvided by e adjusted operating profit,

Ciosest equivaient IFRS measure Effective tax rate

See reconciliction or page 194,

Provides an uncerlying tax 'ate te
glow comaa-ab Ity of Lnderying

anancial perforrance, by excl.ding
the impacts of net 1AS 41 val.aton
movement on B'olog ool assets
amortsator of acqured ntang bie
assets shore-based cayment
expeanse ard excapt onal items
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Calculation methodology and closest equivalent IFRS measure
(where applicable)

Reasons why we believe the
APMs are useful

Adjusted basic earnings
per share

Adjusted profit ofter tax profit divided by the weighted basic
average number of shares.

Closest equivalent IFRS measure. Eamimgs per share

See calculation on page 194

Adjusted diluted earnings
per share

Underlying attributable profit divided by the diluted weighted
basic average numoer of shares,

Closest equivalent IFRS measure Diluted earnings per share

See calculation on page 194,

On a per share basis, this allows the
comparability of underlying financial
performance by excluding the
impacts of adjusting items,

Adjusted earnings cover

Adjustad earnings per share divided by the expected dividend
for the year

See coloculaton on page 194,

The Board dgividend policy targets the
adjusted earning cover to be
between 2 5-3 times.

Adjusted EBITDA —
calculated in accordance
with the definitions used
in our financing facilities

This is adjusted operating profit, adding back cash receved
from our JVs, depreciation of property, plant and eguipment,
depreciation of the histoncal cost of biological assets,
operational gmortisation (e excluding amortisation of
acquired intangibles) and deducting the amount attnibutable
o minarity interest.

Cipsest equivalent IFRS measure: Operating profir!

See reconciigtion on page 194,

Th's APM 15 presented because it is
used in calculating our ratio of net
debt to EBITDA and our interest cover,
which we report to our banks to
ensure compliance with our

bonk covenants

Adjusted operating
margin

Adjusted operating profit {including JVs) divided by revenue.

Adjusted operating
margin {exc JVs)

Adjusted operating profit divided by revenue,

Allows for the comparanility of
underiying financia! perfermance
by excluding the impacts of
exceplhional itemns,

Constant currency basis

The Group repo s certain financial measures, on both a reported

and constant currency basis and retranslates the current year's

results ot the average actual exchange rates used In the previous

financia’ year,

The Group's business operatas in
multiple countries worldwide and i1ts
trading results are trarslated back
into the Group's functional currency of
Sterhing. This measure eliminates the
effects of exchange rate fluctuatans
when comparing year-on-year
reported resudlts

Revenue excluding Genus
PIC China

Revenue excluding revenue made by Genus PIC China,

See reconciliation on page 195.

Adjusted operating profit
in¢ JVs for Genus PIC
excluding Genus PIC
China

Adjusted operating profit including JVs for Genus PiIC excluding
adjusted operating profit including J¥s made by Genus PIC
China,

See reconciliation on page 195

Allows far the comparson of the
financial performance of Genus PIC
by excluding the results of Genus PIC
Ching, which has beenimpacted by
voiatle and challenging market
corditions.

Adjusted profit before tax
excluding Genus PIC
China

Adjusted profit before tax excluding Genus PIC China

See reconciliation on page 195

Allows for the companson of
underlying financial performance of
Genus by exciuding Genus PIC China.

Net debt

Net debt s gross debt, made up of unsecured bank loans and

overdrafts and abligations under finance leases, with a deduction

for cash and cash equivalents

See reconciliction on page 195.

This aliows the Group to rmontor its
levels of debt

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
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ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES GLOSSARY CONTINUED

Alternative Performance
Measures

Calculation methodolegy and closest equivalent IFRS measure
(where applicable)

Reasons why we believe the
APMs are useful

Net debt — calculated in
accordance with the
definitions used in our
financing facilities

Net debt excluding the mpact of adopting 1FRS 16 and adding
back guarantees and deferred purchase arrangements

See reconciliction on page 195.

This 15 @ key metric tnat we report to
our banks to ensure compliance with
our bank covenants.

Cash conversion

Cash generated by operatians as a percentage of adjusted
operating profit excluding Jvs.

See calculation on pags 196,

This s used to medgsure how much
operating cash flow we are
generating and how efficient we are
at converting our operating profit
into cash.

Free cash flow

Cash generated by the Group before debt repayments,
acguisiions ang investments, dividerds and proceeds from
share sssues,

Closest IFRS measure. Net cash flow frorm operating activities

See reconciliation or page 196

Shows the cash retained by the Group
In the year

Interest cover

The ratio of adiusted net Ainance costs, calculated inaccordance
with the definitions used in ouwr inancing faciitias, is ret finance
Costs with a deduction for pension interest, Interest from adopting
IFRS 16, unwinding of discount on put options and amortisation of
refinancing fees, to adjusted EBITDA

Closest equivalent IFRS components for the ratio The equivalent
IFRS components are finance costs, finance income and

Operating profit

See calculation ard reconciliaton o page 196

This APM 15 used to understand our
ability 1o meet our interest payrments
and is also a key metric that we report
to our banks to ensure compliance
with cur bank covenants,

Ratio of net debt to
adjusted EBITDA

Tre ratic of net dent, calculated n accordarce with the
defirtions used i our Anancing facilities, s gress debt made uo
of unsecured bank loans and overdrafts and obligaticns ander
finance leases, with ¢ deductior for cash and cosn equivaiants
and adding back amounts related to guarantees and defered
ouchose arrangaments, 1o ad usted EBITDA

Closest equnvalent IFRS components for the rano: The equivaient
1FRS components are gross debt, cash and cash eguvalents and

operating proft

See colcuiation on poge 196,

This APM is used as a measueTent of
our leverage and 1s alse o key metnc

that we -eport 1o our bangs to ensure
comphance with our bank covenants.

Return on adjusted
invested capital

The Group's return or ad usted Invasted capita is measured on
the basis of ad:usted operatirg profit ncluding JVs after tax,
which s operatng prost w th the ore-tox share of prefits from Vs
and gssociates, ret 145 41 valuation move et on bolcaical
assets, amortisation of acguired nto-giole assets, share-oosed
cayment exparse and except onal items aoded bac< net of
amounzs attnbutaple to nor-controling Mterast and tax

Tre cg,usted operating orefit inc'uding JVs ater tax s diviced oy
adjusted investea copital, wh oh s the eguity attrburacle to
awners of tne Compony adding pack net deot. pension habiity
ret of related deferred 1ax and deducting biologice cssets

lless historica cost) ard goodwrl, net of relatea deferred tox,

Closest egquvalent 1FRS components for the ratic.
Return an invested caota!

See calculanon and reconcihaticn or sage 197

Tris APM 15 usec to measure oJr
ability to efficiently ~vest our capital
and gives us g sense of how wel we
are usirg our resources o genarata
returns
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THE TABLES BELOW RECONCILE THE CLOSEST EQUIVALENT IFRS MEASURE TO THE APM OR OUTLINE THE CALCULATION OF THE APM

INCOME STATEMENT MEASURES

Adjusted operating profit exc JVs
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs

Adjusted operating profit inc JVs and exc gene editing costs

2022

£m £m [ £ Refeigeoe
Operoting profit 49.4 477 Group Income Statement
Add back:
Mot IAS 41 valuation maverment sn biological assels 5.4 18 Group Income Statement
Amortisation of acqlred intangitle assets 83 A Group Income Statement
Share-based payment expense 37 77 Group Income Statement
Exceptional tems 20 33 Groug Incornea Statement
Adjusted operating profit exc JVs 48.8 76,9 Group Income Stotement
Less: amounts attributable to non-controlling interest (0.3} 0.1} Group Income Statement
Operating proft from JVs ana associates 52 131 Group Income Statement
Tax on JVs and associates 25 30 Note T — Income tax expense
Note 18 - Equity accounted
Net AS 41 valualion movement 14 (31 investees
Adjusted cperating profit from Jvs 52 130
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs 777 89.8
Note 5 - Segmental
Gene editing costs 3 & irformation
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs and exc gene editing
costs 85.6 7.4
Adjusted cperating profit inc JVs after tax
2022 2071

£m S Raemororoe
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs 777 B89.8 See APM
Effective Tax Rate 24.3% 22.5% MNote 12 - Earnings per share
Acyusted tax (189} (20.2) No direct reference
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs after tax 58.8 49.6
Adjusted profitinc JVs before tax
Adjusted profitinc JVs after tax

2022 202

£m I Rasoraroc
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs 777 89.8 Sece APM
Less net finance costs (&2} 5.0} Note 10 - Net finance costs
Adjusted profitine JVs before tax 715 84.8
Adjusted tox (17.4) {291} Note 12 - Farrings per share
Adjusted profitinc JVs ofter tax 54.1 45,7

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
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ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES GLOSSARY CONTINUED

Adjusted effective tax Em/rate

2022 200
£Em % £ L RoRnzeno
Adjusted effective tax Em/rate 174 24.3 w1 22.5 Note 12 - Earnings per share
Exceptional items 108l {400} (1.1 133.3) Note 12 - Farnings per share
Share-based payment expense 0.5} (135} {16} 1208) Note 12 - Eanings per share
Amortisation of aocquired ntangible assets z3 (398) (13 {203} note 12 ~ Earn'ngs per snare
Net 1AS 41 valuauon movement on bic ogical assets 15 278 23] 1265} Note 12 - Earnings per share
Effective tax £Em/rate 14.3 28.0 12.0 20.4 Nowe 11 - Taxation and
deferred taxation
Adjusted basic earnings per share
2022 208 Rererococo
Adjusted profit inc JVs after tax (Em) 54.1 65.7 See APM
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (000s) 55.395 45108 MNote 12 - Earnings pe- share
Adjusted basic earnings per share (pence) 827 1009
Adjusted diluted earnings per share
2022 LT Refgonso
Adjusted profit inc JVs after tax {Em) 54.1 657 Sec APM
Weighted average number of diluted orairary shares {000s} 65714 654602 Note 12 - Earnings per share
Adjusted diluted earnings per share (pence) 82.3 100.1
Adjusted earnings cover
2022 plers
pence times [Pl el P, Rofergooe
Adjusted earnings per share 827 100.9 See APM
Dividend for the year 32.0 32.0 Note 13 - Dividerds
Adjusted earnings cover 2.6 3.2
Adjusted EBITDA - as calculated under our financing facilities
2022 2"
£m Em - = Fofeooco
Cperating profit 49.4 477 Group Income Statement
Add back:
Net IAS 41 valugt'on movement on biciogical assets 54 108 Group rcome Statement
Amaortisation of acquired intangible assets 83 Tds Groue Inco™e Statement
Skore-based payment expense 37 77 Grouo Income Statermert
Exceptional items 20 53 Group ncome Statement
Adjusted operating profit exc JVs 488 745 Group Income Statemen:
Adjust for:
Casn racewed from Vs [d wderd and locr repayment) 32 47 Group Stotement of Cash
F.ows
Cepreciation: property. clant ard ecuonment 204 240 nhate 17 - Property, plant and
equIprent
Ope-gronal enze payments 1224) 125 Note 28 - Oblgatons wrder
leases
Deprec:ator. histonca' cost of oicicgoa! assets 107 20 See mnanciar Rev ew
Amortisgtan ana imparmeant lexcLding separate'y
icentihable acquired -ntangible assets! L3 37 Note 15 - Intang tle assets
_@5s amounts att-butab e to ron-contrell ng irterest 0.3 omb Group ncome Statement
Adjusted EBITDA - as calculated under our financing
facilities 100.7 106.1
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30 June 2022 30 bore 2021
£m Em Er e Refarer o
Revenue in Genus 593.4 574.3 Note 5 - Segmental
information
Less revenue in Genus PIiC Ching 299 (550) No direct reference
Revenue excluding Genus PIC China 543.5 5193
Adjusted operating profit excluding Genus PIC Chinag
30 June 2022 30 Jure 2021
Em £m I fem feterraco
Adjusted operating profit in Genus PIC 1123 1229 Group income Statement
Adjusted cperating profit from 21C JVs and asscciates 21 132 No direct reference
Less amounts attributabie to non-controlling interest (0.2} 02 No direct reference
121.2 135%
Less adjusted operating profit in Genus PIC China (5.6} {32.4) No direct reference
Adjusted operating profit excludng Genus P:C China 115.6 1025
Adjusted profit before tax excluding Genus PIC China
10 June 2022 30 June 2000
Em £m £ £ Refaranas
Agjusted profit before tax 715 84.8 Group Income Statement
Less adjusted profit before tax in Genus PIC China (5.8) {334} No drect reference
Adjusted profit before tax excluding
Genus PIC Ching 65.9 514
BALANCE SHEET MEASURES
Net debt
Net debt as calculated under our financing facilities
2022 2071
Em £m I L Refarerce
Current unsecured bank loans and overdrafis 71 139
Nor-current unsecurad bank loans and overdrafts 1821 1094
Unsecured bank loans and overdrafts 1892 1233 Group Balance Sheet
Current obligations under finance ieases 10.1 20
Non-current obligations under inance leases 245 193
Obligations unaer finance leases 346 283 Group Balance Sheet
Total debt financing 2238 1514 MNote 32 - Mates to the cash
flow statement
Deduct.
Cash and cask equivalents {(38.8) &0} Group Balance Sheet
Net debt 1850 105.6
Deduct:
Lower of oolgations under inance leases or £30m (300) {283
Add back.
Guaranteas 20.2 121 Note 35 - Contingencies ond
bork guarantees
Defered purchase arangements - 01 Mo direct reference
Net debt - as calculated under our financing facilities 175.2 96.5

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
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ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES GLOSSARY CONTINUED

CASH FLOW MEASURES
Cash conversion

2022 »C21
£m £m L Fo Peferanae
Cash generated by operations 56.6 86.6 Note 32 - Notes to the
cash flow statement
Qperating profit Lo4 477 Group Income Statemant
Add back:
Net 1AS 41 valuation mevement on oiological assets 54 108 Group Income Statement
Arnortisation of acquired mntangible assets 83 T Group Income Statement
Share-bhased payment expense 37 77 Group 'ncome Statement
Excepticnal items 20 33 Groug Income Statement
Adjusted operating profit exc JVs 48.8 769 Group Inceme Statement
Cash conversion {%) 82% 113%
Free cash flow
2022 2
£m £m oot S Poferso
Cash generated by operations 56.6 86.6 Note 32 - Notes to the
cash flow statemen:
Net nterest and tox oad (223) 1191} Naote 32 - Notes to the
cash flow stotemenrt
Capital expenditure 509} [33.8) Group Statement of
Cash Flows
Dividends received from JV and associotes 32 4.1 Groun Statement of
Cash Fows
Joint venture and associate loan (payment).repayment - 10.4) Group Stotement of
Castk Flows
Proceeds from soie of property, plant ard eguipment - 03 Group Stotement of
Cash Flows
Dividend to non-contreling interast 01 0.2 Group Statemeant of
Cash Flows
Free cash flow {13.5) 375
OTHER MEASURES
Interest cover
2022 ol
Em Times e Tres oo Lo
Finonce costs b6 54 Group Income Statement
Finance income 10.4) 0.4) Group Income Staterrent
Net finarce costs 5.2 Note 10 - Net finance costs
Deduct:
Pansiorn interest a2 03 Note 10 - Net finonce costs
interest on lease Fabit'es L1} 08 Note 10 - Net firance costs
Unw naing discoart or put options o2l 0.6 Note 10 - Net finunce costs
Amortisation of refinancing fees 109} 09) Note 10 - Net drance osts
Adjusted net fingnce costs 38 2.4
Adjusted EBITDA - as calcuigted under our financing
facilities 1007 106.1 See APM
Interest cover 27 45
Ratio of net debt to adjusted EBITDA
2022 2221
£m Timas £ Teros Reto oo
Net debt - as calculated under our financing facilities 175.2 946.5 Seg APM
Adjusted EBITDA - as calculated under our financing
facilities 100.7 106.1 See APM
Ratic of net debt tc EBITDA 17 0.9
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2022 2021
Em % £ % Refere e

Adjusted operating profitinc JVs after tax 58.8 69.6 Sea APM
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 5785 4981 Group Balance Sheet
Add back
Net debt 1850 1056 Note 32 - Notes to the cash

flow statement
Persion liability 8.3 111 Group Balance Sheet
Related deferred tax (1.3) (2.1) Note 11 - Taxation and

deferred taxation
Adjast for
B clogical assets - carrying value {364.8) (3195} Note 16 - Biological assets
Bological assets’ harvest classed as nventones (209] (178] Note 20 - Inventories
Biclogical assets - histonc cost 772 651 See Snancial Review
Goodwill (1110) {101.5} Group Balance Sheet

Note 11 - Taxation and
Related deferred tax 730 637 deferred taxation
Adjusted invested capital 422.0 302.7
Return on adjusted invested capital 13.9% 23.0%
Return on invested capital

2022 201
Em % [l % Refergroe

Return on adjusted invested capital 13.9% 23.0% See APM
Adjusted operating profit Inc JVs after tax 588 696 See APM
Tax rate 189 24.3% 202 22.5% Note 12 - Earnings per share
Adjusted operatng profit inc Jvs 7i7 898 Group 'ncome Statement
Adjusted operating profit attributable to non-controlling
nrerest 03 01 Group Income Statement
Pre-tax share of profits from JVs exc net IAS 41 vatuation
movement (2.2} 1130} Group Income Statement
Adjusted operating proht exc JVs 688 e Group Income Statement
Farr value movement on biclogical ossets (5.4) (108} Group Income Statement
Amortisation of acguired intangibles 8.3 (74} Group Income Statement
Share-basedg payment expeanse 37 {77} Group Income Statement
Exceptional items (20) {3.3) Group Income Statement
Share of post-tax profit of Jvs 52 131 Group Income Statement
Finance costs 6.2) 0 Group Income Staternent
Profit before tax 48.4 558 Group Income Statement
Tax (117 {20 Group Income Statement
Profit 36.7 468 Group Income Statement
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 5785 498.1 Group Baolance Sheet
Return on invested capital 6.3% %.4%

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
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AGM — Arnual General Meeting.

Artificial insemination {'Al'} - Using semen
coliected from a bull or boar to impregnate
o cow or sow when in estrus. Artificial
insemination allows a genetically superior
male to be used to mate with mony more
females than would e possible with
natural mating.

ASF — African Swine Fever.

Biosecurity — The precautions taken o
reduce the chance of ransmitting disease
agents from one livestock operation

10 another.

Boar - A male pig.

BRD - Bovine Respiratory Disedse, @
complex, bacterial and viral infection that
couses lung disease in cattle {particularly
calves) and is often fatal.

CPIl - Censumer Price Index.

CRISPR-Cas 9 — Technology which
accurately targets and cuts DNA to
produce precise and controllable changes
1o the genome.

CSR - Corporate Social Responsiblity.
DSBP - Deferred Share Bonus Plan.

EPS - Earnings per share,

Farrow - When a sow gives birth ta piglets.
GELT - Genus Executive Leadership Team.

Gender skew - The ability to influence
the proportion of offspring being of a
particular sex.

Genetic gain - The change of the genetic
make up of a particular animal population
in response to having selected parents
that excelled genetically for important
traits,

Genetic lag - The amount of time required
to disseminate genetic gain from a nucleus
herd to the commercigl customer.

Genetic nucleus - A specialised pig herd,
where Genus PIC keeps its pure lines. Pigs
are genetically tested at the nucleus to
select the best animals to produce the
next generation,

Genomic bull - A bull which has been
assessed through genomic testing. This
typically refers to bulls which have not
been progeny-tested.

Genomicaliy tested — An animat that has
been DNA profiled

Genomics — The study of the genome,
which is the DNA sequence of an animal’s
chromosomes.
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Gilt - A young femaie pig, which has not
yet given birth.

GMS - ABS's Genetic Management
System, which creates a genstic solution
railored to each individual dairy producer
to obtain improved herd genetics.

Grandparent - The relationship of a
breeding pig to the generation of termina)
market pigs. A grandparent produces
parents, who in tum produce the
commercial generation of terminal pigs.

Group — Genus ple and its subsidiary
compamies.

In vitro fertilisation ('IVF') — The fertilisation
of an cocyte with semen (outsicde an
animal) in o loboratory for tromsfer into

a surrogate.

Index/Indices — A formula incorporating
economically important traits for ranking
the genetic potentiol of animals as parents
of the next generation.

Integrated pork producer - Producers of
pork typically involved in raising animals to
slaughter weight oll the way throughto
packaged and/or branded pork products.

IntelliGen ~ The technology platform
used to pracess sexed bovine sernen

far ABS and third-party customers and
commercialised by ABS globally as Sexcel,

P - Intellectual property.

IPR - Inter Partes Review before the LS
Patent and Trademarks Office.

IVB — In Vitro Brasi S.A.
JV - Joint venture.

Line - Multiple animals that have been
mated together in a closed breeding
population. Pure lines can have their origins
in one founding breed or in several breeds.

Market pig equivalents ["MPE‘) - Refers to
a standordised measure of our customers’
production of slaughter animals that
contain our genetics with genes from each
of the sow and boar counting for half of
the animai.

Multiplier ~ A producer whose farm
contains grandparent sows. The

farm crosses together two lines of
grandparents, multiplying the number
of genetically improved parents that
are available for sale.

NuEra — The ABS beef breeding
programme and index designed to drive
the customer’s genetic improvement and
deliver total system profitability for the
beef supply chain.

PQA - Pork Quality Assurance.

Progeny tested — Elite animals whose
genetic value as a parent has been tested
and validated through the performance of
their offspring.

PRRSv - Porcine Reproductive and
Respiratory Syndrome Virus.

PSP - Performance Share Plan.

PTAB — Patent Trial ond Appec! Board
before the US Patent and Tradernarks
Cffice

R&D — Research and development.

RMS — ABS's Reproductive Management
Systern, whichis a systematic approach to
maximising pregnancy production and its
contribution 1o herd profitability,

RPI - Retall Price index.

RWD - ABS's Real World Dota System of
observed performance data from many
dairy herds.

Russian Sanctions — legiskation introduced
by the UK, EU or US (os appropriate} which
impose finoncial, trade, transport,
immigration or other sanctions for the
purposes of encouragng Russia to cease
actions which destabilise Ukraine, or
undermine or threaten the territarial
integrity, sovereignty or independence

of Ukraine.

Sexcel - The ABS brand of sexed bovine
genetics produced using IntelliGen.

Sire - The male parent of an animal.

Sire line - The male line selected for traits
desirable for the market.

Sow — A female pig which has given birth
at least once.

Straw - A narrow tuba used to package
frozen bull semen,

Stud - Locations where bulls or boars are
housed and their semen collected,
evaluated, diluted into multiple doses,
straws and packaged, ready for shipping
to farms.

Terminal boars — The male pig that 1s used
to mate with a parent female to produce a
terminal prg.

Trait - A measurable characteristic that
may be a target for genetic selection.

TransitionRight - Genus ABS's poatent-
pending genetic selection tool to help
prevent multiple post calving metabolic
disorders that occur during transition.

Unit - A straw of frozen bull semen or tube/
bag of fresh boar semen sold to

a customer.
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